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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Moody Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”), | report to shareholders our annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year"” or “Period”).

RESULTS

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB155.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing a decrease of
approximately 24.7% as compared with the revenue of RMB206.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group's products
experienced a gross profits margin of approximately 2.3%, as
compared with a gross loss margin of approximately 6.0% from
previous year. Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
Year decreased from loss of approximately RMB219.0 million in 2020
to loss of approximately RMB100.5 million in 2021, representing a
decrease of approximately 54.1% as compared with the last year,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in impairment losses
for both inventories and prepayment made during the Year. Sales
of shoes, clothes and others contributed revenue amounted to
approximately RMB125.6 million (2020: RMB191.4 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Sales of fabrics contributed revenue
amounted to approximately RMB29.9 million (2020: RMB15.2 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

OUTLOOK

The Company is in the view that the Group's fabrics business in
2021 had slightly recovered from the adverse impacts of COVID-19
in previous two years, following the recovery of the domestic
demands on the textile products in the PRC. The exports of the
Group’s clothing products to the Asian countries largely depends on
the recovery of their local consumption markets from the epidemics
of variant coronavirus. The economy of Korea, one of the largest
overseas markets of the Group, continues to recover with their GDP
growth set to reach approximately 4% in 2021. While distancing
measures have weighed on the service sector over the past summer,
rapid vaccination paves the way for an acceleration in private
consumption in Korea. The management will closely monitor the
sales markets of the business and make adjustment of sales strategies
when necessary. The management will also closely monitor the
Group's financial performance, financial position and cash flow in
order to maintain the normal operation of the Group.
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The debt restructuring progress was lately affected by the fifth wave
of the COVID-19 epidemics in Hong Kong. Reference is made to
the announcement of the Company dated 9 September 2021 in
relation to, inter alia, the postponement of the implementation of the
Scheme. In February 2022, the Team considered to require slightly
more time to finalise the Scheme documents due to a COVID-19
related interruption in the JPLs office, the Company applied to re-
fix the date of Application Hearing scheduled on 25 February 2022.
The Judge had relisted the date of the Application Hearing on 20
April 2022 and the Sanction Hearing on 28 June 2022. Further
announcements will be published as and when necessary to update
the shareholders and potential investors for any progress of the
Scheme.
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Lastly, |1 would like to express my gratitude on behalf of the Board
to all our stakeholders for giving the Group their care, patience and
support over the years.

Moody Technology Holdings Limited
Li Wanyuan

Acting Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 May 2022
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AEIEH
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LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Winston & Strawn

42nd Floor

Bank of China

Tower 1 Garden Road Central,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
Bank of Quanzhou
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REGISTERED OFFICE
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199 Des Voeux Road Central,

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTER AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House
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Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTER AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Group’s revenue dropped by 24.7% to
RMB155.5 million when compared with last year. Loss attributable
to owners of the Company decreased by 54.1% to approximately
RMB100.5 million against last year. Basic and diluted loss per share
decreased from loss per share of RMB7.59 in 2020 to loss per share
of RMB2.24 in 2021.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics of the
PRC, the aggregate sales achieved by sizeable textile enterprises
amounted to RMB2,571.4 billion in 2021, representing a 10%
increase from 2020, with profit totalling RMB120.3 billion, up by
4.1% from 2020. The raw material price of textile products increased
by approximately 5.0% on a year-on-year basis from January 2021 to
December 2021. According to data from the General Administration
of Customs of the PRC, textile products amounted to US$145.2
billion were exported from the PRC in 2021, representing a decrease
of 5.6% from 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group's fabrics business was mainly
manufacturing and sales of dyed garment fabrics, which had slightly
recovered from the adverse impact of the COVID-19. The number
of customers increased (2021: 60; 2020: 16) from last year. The
Group mainly focus on selling high-end fabrics products and the
average selling price of fabrics products increased from approximately
RMB1.8 per meter in 2020 to RMB5.4 per meter, representing an
increase of approximately 200% for the Year. The average cost of
fabrics increased from approximately RMB3.9 per meter in 2020 to
approximately RMB5.3 per meter in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE fEstim & 7 47

In 2021, the sales volume of the Group's shoes and clothes was
affected by the weak domestic consumption of the Asian countries,
mainly Korea and Japan, which is still under the recovery from
the COVID-19. The Group has put much effort to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers in the PRC. Though the number of
overseas customers increased from 193 in 2020 to 198 in 2021, the
average sales volume per customer decreased resulting the overall
decrease in sales turnover.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue mainly generated from sales of shoes and
clothes in the Asian countries and manufacturing and sales of
fabrics in the PRC. The total revenue decreased from approximately
RMB206.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB155.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

For the fabrics segment, the number of customers increased (2021:
60; 2020: 16) from last year. The average selling price of fabrics
products increased from approximately RMB1.8 per meter in 2020
to RMB5.4 per meter, representing an increase of approximately
200% for the Year. These resulted in an increase in the sales of
fabrics products from approximately RMB15.2 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB29.9 million in 2021, representing an increase of
approximately 96.4% for the Year.

The sales of Group's shoes and clothes decreased from approximately
RMB191.4 million in 2020 to approximately RMB125.6 million in
2021, representing a decrease of approximately 34.4% for the Year.
The sales volume of the products was affected by the weak domestic
consumption of the Asian countries, mainly Korea and Japan, which
is still under the recovery from the COVID-19. Though the number of
overseas customers increased from 193 in 2020 to 198 in 2021, the
average sales volume per customer decreased resulting the overall
decrease in sales turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstsm K 7 47

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group's revenue T FR& ¥ A%E BN AFEILE @ B WA

categorised by products during the year: i
Year ended 31 December
BET-A=1+-HILEE
% to total % to total
2021 revenue 2020 revenue
gt v
—E--F Bt —Z-ZH BOL
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETF T
Shoes, clothes and others #E REREMEES 125,645 80.8 191,443 92.6
Fabrics R 29,896 19.2 15,223 7.4
Total s@ar 155,541 100.0 206,666 100.0
Cost of sales SHE R A

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 30.6% from approximately HE—_Z_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE X%
RMB219.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to E#HERAREE T -_ZTF+-A=1+—H
approximately RMB151.9 million for the year ended 31 December IFFEHAREE219.08E THL30.6%E4A
2021. Such decrease in cost of sales was in line with the decreased R¥151. 98 8- HEXRANRM D EAREFEFTEE
turnover during the Year. R —%o

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group's cost of sales TREHIANEBMARFEEIZER D ERNHEERK

categorised by products during the year: NEAAE
Year ended 31 December
BET-A=1+-HILEE
% to total % to total
2021  cost of sales 2020 cost of sales
LEHE HBEE
—E--F BAB A —“E-TF  RABRSK
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREFT
Shoes, clothes and others 8B REREMEE 122,924 80.9 184,765 84.4
Fabrics E# 28,990 19.1 34,216 15.6
Total @ar 151,914 100.0 218,981 100.0
8 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE fEstim & 7 47

Gross profits/(loss)

The Group experienced a gross profits of approximately RMB3.6
million in 2021, representing a gross profits margin of approximately
2.3%, as compared to a gross loss of approximately RMB12.3 million
in 2020, representing a gross loss margin of approximately 6.0%.
The reason for such improvement was mainly due to the recovery of
fabrics business of the Group. The increase in average selling price of
fabrics products increased from approximately RMB1.8 per meter in
2020 to RMB5.4 per meter, representing an increase of approximately
200% for the Year and the average cost of fabrics increased from
approximately RMB3.9 per meter in 2020 to approximately RMB5.3
per meter in 2021. These resulted the Group's fabric segment a gross
profit margin of approximately 3% in 2021 as compared with the
gross loss margin of approximately 125% in 2020.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group's gross profits/
(losses) categorised by products during the year:

ER (E8)
REBR-_ZE-Z—FHEFOAEARE3I6EE
T (ERMEHE23%) M_T_ZTFHEIE
A AANREI1235E T (FIEBRHAE6.0%) -
ENENRAIZEEMRAEENEMZE
EWERH - BRERNITHEER T =T
FHEFROARBISTIEMESKARKS4
TT o RN E IS AN 49200% - 1 E R T 15 Ak AR
T _ZFNERHOARBIOTENZEZ
T —FERNEBRNARBESIT -ZEREEY
RERHEHESDBR-_E-_—ENENEAEY
3% M ZTFMEEBELHAEI125% °

TERBJIAEERNAFERERDENEF,
(£1]) A4 :

Year ended 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE

Gross Gross
profit profit/(loss)
2021 margin 2020 margin
5,/
—E--F E=Y - (BB %
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETF T
Shoes, clothes and others HEE REREMHEE 2,721 2.2% 6,678 3.5%
Fabrics R 906 3.0% (18,993) (125%)
Total st 3,627 23% (12,315) (6.0%)
MR ERAAERLQT 9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstsm K 7 47

Other income

Decrease in other income by 48.4% from approximately RMB40.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB21.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly
because the net foreign exchange gains decreased from approximately
RMB39.4 million in 2020 to approximately RMB17.1 million in 2021
due to the decreased appreciation rate of RMB against HKD in 2021.

Selling and distribution expenses

The decrease in selling and distribution expenses by 58.9% from
approximately RMB7.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 as the transportation charges decreased in line with drop of
sales amounts in the year.

General and administrative expenses

The decrease in general and administrative expenses by 66.6% from
approximately RMB101.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB33.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 was mainly because the impairment losses of
inventories made decreased from approximately RMB19.7 million
in 2020 to approximately RMB1.2 million in 2021. The provision of
prepayment also decreased from approximately RMB21.9 million
in 2020 to approximately RMB2.1 million in 2021 based on the
provision policies for prepayment of the Group, being provision for
long outstanding with no subsequent settlement up to the date of
this report.

Finance costs

The decrease in finance costs by 46.2% from approximately
RMB127.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB68.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 was mainly more imputed interests of the bonds were provided
in the prior year while there was no such provision in the Year.

Income tax expense

No provision for both Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise
Income Tax were provided because there are no assessable profits for
the subsidiaries in both Hong Kong and PRC.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2021 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE fEstim & 7 47

Cash flows

During the Year, the cash of the Group was mainly generated from
and used in the operating activities and financing activities. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, net cash used in operating activities
of the Group amounted to RMBO0.3 million as compared to RMB15.8
million in 2020. Net cash used in financing activities amounted to
approximately RMB1.0 million in 2021 as compared to approximately
RMB47.7 million in 2020 mainly due to the decrease in the amounts
used in the repayment of borrowings during the Year.

Liquidities and financial resources

Our primary uses of cash are to satisfy our working capital needs and
our capital expenditure needs. Since our establishment, our working
capital needs and capital expenditure requirements have been
principally financed through a combination of shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operations, and borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management policy.
In order to achieve better cost control and minimize the cost of funds,
the Group's treasury activities and cash and cash equivalents are
generally deposited with certain financial institutions such as banks
denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

Net current assets and working capital
The following table sets forth the Group's current ratio, quick ratio,
gearing ratio and debt to equity as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

BHERE

REAN AEEMNReFTZERERAREEE
FLRMEERS -HE T -_—F+-_A=1+—
AEFE ASEKEEHMANBESTFER
ARBOIEET M_ZT_ZTF AARMKI58
BEL - ZE_—FREITYMANRSFR
NAEARBIEBT M_ZE-ZFHAAR
a7 7B B L DETEHRFRNEEGRAAE
TERLR -

RBEERMBEER

BFNRSEIERRBRRMNEEESTE
FREARIBE - BAD AR R
LEESHREREARATR —EEBEBR
RiEE GEMERERERESES RS-

AEERRDNBENRSRUBEEBREK - BE
TSR R EAEFRERESKE NEH
FEEHMREG RS EEY BT RRRT
EETemEE BREPUARE BT
&

RBEEFERELEEED
TRHBINAEERZZEZ_—FRZZZFF
+TZA=Z+t—HMARSEER REBER -BE
BELEREBRAL %

As at 31 December

B+=-—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR AREEF T

Current assets REEE 21,503 53,509
Current liabilities wREEE 1,093,130 983,267
Net Current liabilities REBEFE (1,071,627) (929,758)
Current ratio VLIPS 2.0% 5.4%
Quick ratio RN R 1.8% 5.1%
Gearing ratio BEEAELE N/ATE F N/AZ 38 F
Debt to equity ratio EIFAR AN b & N/ATiE F N/AZ 3 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstsm K 7 47

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s rights-of-use assets and
buildings, machinery and equipment with an aggregate net book
value of approximately RMB160.7 million were pledged to secure
banking facilities for purposes of working capital and purchases of
fixed assets for the Group (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
RMB176.3 million).

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the mainland China with most of
the revenue and expenditure transactions denominated and settled
in RMB, where its foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group's
exposure to foreign exchange risk is mainly on its sales and purchase
transactions (i.e. export or import of products) in Hong Kong which
are mainly denominated in USD, and the bonds denominated in HKD.
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is RMB.

Contingent liabilities

Save as those disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2021.

Significant investment, material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies
Major acquisition in relation to acquisition of 51% of
equity interests of the Target Company involving the
issue of consideration shares under specific mandate

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 24
December 2020 in relation to the memorandum of understanding
(the "MOU") in respect of a possible acquisition. The Possible
Acquisition is subject to, among other things, the negotiations
and execution of the Definitive Transaction Documents. There
was no formal agreement to further extend the MOU but mutual
understanding between the Company and the Vendor to pending for
the Definitive Transaction Document as the due diligence and draft in
of the sales and purchase agreements continued after the exclusivity
period of the MOU expired on 31 March 2021.
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Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
26 July 2021, the Company and the Vendor entered into the
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and
the Vendor agreed to sell, the Sale Shares, which represents 51.0%
equity interests of the Target Company involving the issue of the
Consideration Shares under specific mandate. It is expected that such
acquisition could expand the Company's business in the production
and the sales of elastic webbing used for bras and underwear, and
strengthen the products, revenue sources and cash flow position of
the Group in future.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Acquisition is conditional upon
fulfilment or waiver (as the case maybe) of the conditions (the
“Conditions”) set out therein on or before the Long-Stop Date (i.e.
31 December 2021) or such other date as may be agreed by the
Company and the Vendor in writing. As additional time is required
for the fulfilment of the Conditions, on 31 December 2021, the
Company and the Vendor entered into a supplemental agreement
to extend the Long-Stop Date from 31 December 2021 to 30 June
2022 or such other date as may be agreed by the Company and the
Vendor in writing.

The Directors are of the view that the Acquisition is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 29
March 2021 and 26 April 2021 in relation to, among other things,
the subscription of new shares under the general mandate; and the
announcements of the Company dated 18 July 2021, 21 July 2021
and 6 August 2021 in relation to, among other things, subscriptions
of new shares under general mandate. As at the date of this report,
all the net proceeds have been utilised for general working capital
and costs of debt restructuring as intended.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of 83 (as
at 31 December 2020: 55). More temporary staff were recruited to
cater for the Group’s business during the Year. The Group offers its
staff competitive remuneration schemes. In addition, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to eligible staff based
on individual and Group's performance. The Group is committed to
nurturing a learning and sharing culture in the organization. Heavy
emphasis is placed on the training and development of individual
staff and team building, as the Group’s success is dependent on
the contribution of all functional divisions comprising skilled and
motivated staff.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). As
there is no interim dividend payable during the year, there will be no
dividend distribution for the whole year of 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s shares
by the Company or its subsidiaries during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Except for disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant events affecting the Group,
which occurred after the end of the reporting period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The manner in which the principles and code provisions
in the CG Code are applied and implemented during the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report (the
“Period”) is explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company was committed to maintaining high level of corporate
governance and has steered its development and protected the
interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and open manner. The
Board comprises three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has complied with the applicable
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year save
for code provision A.1.8.

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code stipulates that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors. Currently, the Company does not consider
necessary to have insurance cover for legal action against its Directors
and will monitor any changes to the situation and make necessary
action. The Board believes with the current internal control system
and the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk
of being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as
Directors is relatively low.

The Company will, from time to time, review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company (the “Securities Dealing
Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors
whether they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Period and all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the Period.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company during the Period.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of
the Group. The Board has delegated to the executive Directors and
senior management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

All Directors carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has throughout the Period met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, and
accounting or related financial management expertise. At all times
during the Period, the independent non-executive Directors represent
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Wanyuan (Appointed as Acting Chairman and
executive director on 22 October 2021)

Mr. Lin Guogin (Resigned as Acting Chairman and
executive director on 22 October 2021)

Ms. Lin Yuxi

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHOW Yun Cheung

Mr. LIN Yugang

Mr. LIU Junting

A description of the biographies of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

The list of Directors is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to
time. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified
in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this annual report, the Acting Chairman of the
Company, Mr. Li Wanyuan, leads the Board in the determination of
the strategy of the Group and in the achievement of its objectives. He
is responsible for organizing the business of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness and setting agenda but not involved in the day-to-day
business of the Group.

The Company at present does not have a Chief Executive Officer.
The duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer of daily
operation of the Group are carried out by the executive Directors
and they are accountable to the Board for financial and operational
performance of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall
include any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for reelection. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of
the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that
as between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Any Director appointed pursuant to
Bye-law 83(2) shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation.

The following Directors will retire by rotation and offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming AGM to be held on 29 June 2022:

Mr. Li Wanyuan
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung
Mr. Liu Junting

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2021 Annual Report

18

ERRITRAHR

RAFEHAH ARAREETFFTETLER
BEZeETASBERBREKRER TE%BZE\
BHABEZESER BREXEXLFIERR
EBEFA2EAEENATEER-

ARRBRBETETRER TREARBEBALRE
AEEFNBEMNTESRET #ﬂﬁ%%
RARENRBLREERANEETEAR

ZEREERES
REAXFRAR RARREEBRRBF RS
b EREFE=0Z2 - AB(IMARLIE=(3)
MEEC ABRGRRIOETNER =22 A8 A
HESR EEREFAZLEBE-FHESR
—R-AHMESENEEKERERERAE
EEEEANES CNEMALRENES
RREMEETE LAEEETRBZEUR
THEEMEABESENEF -WABE %
EEFRIARA-BEEEL BGUHMES
NREREE (RIFRFZMAITEXRE) ©
RIBAUESBAGEZENEMNESEKTFE
EREREIZEFTREXHAAN-

THEFBER -_TE-__FAAZTNARETH
FERFTAEFAG LHESER YRTHEEE
BB

FETLELE
FERELE
BEE L



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (¥ B8 &

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s articles of association.
Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be eligible for re-election and any Director appointed as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election. Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates
will be proposed and put forward to the Board by the Nomination
Committee.

Induction and Continuing Development of Directors
Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, as well as placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

Board Meetings
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Directors’ resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions or by
physical meetings during the Period. The Board is expected to meet
regularly and at least two times a year. The Directors have full access
to information on the Group and independent professional advice at
all times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During the year
and up to the date of this annual report, 11 Board meetings were
held and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings as well
as general meetings in 2021 is set out as follows:

EEeEHeEmATmAREERRIEALE
BLRMBRE UEHARBEREENFE

JSERE S ﬁAEW&E REHRHEBE R
NREFEER SEEFN T —F8TZ

%%AQEi&Hxﬁﬁéﬁfiﬁzﬁ‘JﬁﬂT :

Annual Special
Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting
S MR
Board member EEEgHE Ezged BEXRE BRIAE
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Li Wanyuan (Appointed as TELEE(RZE_—F
Acting Chairman and executive +TAZ+tZREZEAR
director on 22 October 2021) RELERHATESE) 2111 0/1 0/1
Mr. Lin Guogin (Resigned as MBSREE (KT Z—F
Acting Chairman and executive +A-+-HET
director on 22 October 2021) RELERHATESE) 10/11 171 1/1
Ms. Lin Yuxi MEBERZ L 11/11 171 171
Independent non-executive BIUKHTES
directors
Mr. Lin Yugang MM P A 11/11 171 11
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung ERE LA 11/11 11 11
Mr. Liu Junting BMeE LA 11/11 171 171

The Company has to comply with the CG Code provisions with
regard to the conduct of meetings, has annual meeting schedules and
draft agenda of each meeting made available to directors in advance
and serve notice of regular Board meetings to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is required to be given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information have to be sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The Bye-laws contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
27 March 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Company also established a regulatory compliance
committee (the “Regulatory Compliance Committee”) on 26 February
2014.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are all the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Junting, Mr. Lin
Yugang, and Mr. Chow Yun Cheung. Mr. Liu Junting is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board structure and composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors based on criteria such as
integrity, accomplishment, experience, professional and educational
background and time commitments.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The director nomination policy of Company aims to set out the
criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of directors
of the Company; ensure that the board (the “Board”) of directors
of the Company has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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Criteria for nomination and appointment of

Directors
The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out as
follows:

o bringing an independent judgment and making constructive
recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

o serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for Non-Executive Director) and other relevant Board
Committees, if invited;

o devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s)
on which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit
from his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation
in the Board;

o scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

o ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he or she serves
to perform their powers and functions conferred on them by
the Board; and

o conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject
to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time
to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider
whether he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise for filling the
office of an INED with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Nomination process
(a) Appointment of New Director

0

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. Where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.

(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

()

(i)

(iii)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general meeting.

REEF

(a) ZEHEF

(b)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a
candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant information
of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or
applicable laws and regulations.

(c) Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an INED at the general meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting:

(i)  the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

(i) if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board believes
the individual would still be able to devote sufficient time
to the Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(iv)  how the individual contributes to diversity (including
gender diversity) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on the
structure, size and composition of the Board and this Policy and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business
needs, to comply with all applicable laws and regulations from time
to time and maintain good corporate governance practice.
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On 27 March 2014, the Board adopted a board diversity policy which
aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All
Board appointments will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity including gender diversity. The Nomination Committee will
regularly review the measurable objectives to ensure its effectiveness
to achieve diversity on the Board. The following measurable objectives
have been set for implementing the board diversity policy:

° inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
working experience (outside of PRC);

o ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors;

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries; and

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge and
skills in different aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved, 1 out of 5 members of the Board has overseas working
experience and 2 out of 5 members of the Board have accounting or
other professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year and up to the date of this annual report, two committee
meetings were held to review the structure and composition of the
Board and the re-election of the retiring Directors and attendance of
each member is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings

attended/held
Committee member ZEERE HE " BTEBERE
Mr. Liu Junting (chairman) BEsESRE (£/E) 2/2
Mr. Lin Yugang R 5 A 2/2
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung AEEL A 2/2
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The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process
and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates
for directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure (such
as appropriate experience, personal skills and time commitment etc.),
identify and recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for
approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the
new Directors more detailed information on the Group's businesses
and activities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members who are all
the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lin Yugang,
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung and Mr. Liu Junting. Mr. Lin Yugang is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year and up to the date of this annual report, two committee
meetings were held to review and discuss the existing policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors, the remuneration
packages of both the executive and non-executive Directors and
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

RERRE
EAFHREHEETMAZESEZURTR
AR RITBRRESNTMEE URRTE
ERFEDNTESHTINEE T

;HywT
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Number of meetings
attended/held

HiE
Committee member ZEERE HITERRE
Mr. Lin Yugang (chairman) MFMFEE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung ARELE 2/2
Mr. Liu Junting BTk AL 2/2

The Remuneration Committee confirms that the remuneration
payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms
under their employment or service contracts as approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
set out below:

In the band of |

FMEZBEQER BANEEZH KR T H M
ZEENEFERMUZBBELER WIRE
FXAZRBAMBEOANZANERRMETE

RIFCERERTRNTRIEXEB 1.5 5 R
EEREEBRNEE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—HIEF
Bz #BEsImT

Number of individuals

A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Yun Cheung,
Mr. Lin Yugang and Mr. Liu Junting. Mr. Chow Yun Cheung is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board;

To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors; and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues, and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year
up to the date of this annual report, two committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings

attended/held

HE

Committee member ZESHE BITERRY
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung (chairman) FEEELE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Lin Yugang MFRI £ 2/2
Mr. Liu Junting BME L& 2/2
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During the meetings held in 2021 and the first quarter of 2022, the
Audit Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “2021 Final Audit”);

(i)  reviewed the external auditor's report of findings and audit
opinion in relation to the 2021 Final Audit for the year ended
31 December 2021;

(i)  reviewed the management accounts of the Group and the
Group's 2021 interim financial statements; and

(iv)  reviewed the financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2021.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
3 March 2021, 3 May 2021 and 30 June 2021 in relation to an
appointment of internal control adviser and results of internal control
review. The Company has appointed Elite Partners Risk Advisory
Services Limited as the independent professional adviser of the
Company (the “Internal Control Adviser”) to conduct a thorough
review of and make recommendations to improve the Company’s
internal controls on ensuring that significant financial issues and key
business decisions were escalated to the Board for consideration
and/or information in a timely manner and for managing receivables
and prepayments. Such appointment has been approved by the Stock
Exchange. The Company had furnished the Listing Division of the
Stock Exchange with the written report of the Internal Control Adviser
containing such recommendations on 16 April 2021. The Company
had also submitted a follow-up internal control review report to the
Stock Exchange on 15 June 2021.

Based on the results of the follow-up internal control review
report, the Company had complied with all directions of the Listing
Committee published in the Statement of Disciplinary Action of 17
February 2021.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors.
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Regulatory Compliance Committee
The Regulatory Compliance Committee comprises of two
members, namely Mr. Li Wanyuan and Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry.
Mr. Li Wanyuan was appointed as the chairman of the Regulatory
Compliance Committee on 22 October 2021.

The primary duties of the Regulatory Compliance Committee are
to ensure that the Group’s business operations and activities are
in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and the
Regulatory Compliance Committee directly reports to the Board.

The Regulatory Compliance Committee shall meet at least once a
year. During the year, one committee meetings were held to review
and discuss the compliance status of the existing business operations
and activities, with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the respective jurisdictions if applicable. Attendance
of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings

attended/held

HE

Committee member ZEEHE BTEREE
Mr. Li Wanyuan (Executive Director) TETTEE(HITEF) 1”1
Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry (Company Secretary) — #iB@ L L (L al#Z) 1”71

GOING CONCERN ISSUE

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB100,528,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and as at 31 December 2021, the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB1,071,627,000 and RMB1,047,797,000 respectively.
Furthermore, as at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings
of approximately RMB163,312,000 and its bonds of approximately
RMB638,180,000 are subject to renewal or to be fully repaid within
the next twelve months as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on going concern basis. These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon that the Group will be able to successfully negotiate
and agree with the creditors to renew or extend the existing
borrowings or complete debt and/or equity financing to meet its
liabilities as they fall due. Should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements, to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Reports in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Group has
developed its systems of internal control and risk management. The
internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and
manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group.

Certain internal control deficiencies were identified and reported to
the Board. The Group is ongoing to locate an internal control advisor
to review the internal control system of the Group, and conduct
remedies for any deficiencies identified on considered necessary in
due course.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, amounted to approximately RMB788,000 in respect of the
annual audit service.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives letter every year from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the scope
of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the independent auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry,
is a full-time employee of the Group. Please refer to his biographical
details as set out on page 37 of this annual report.
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Rights of Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
special general meetings, and members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Act.

Sending Enquiries to the Board and Procedures

for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person: Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry, Company Secretary

Postal Address: 20/F Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business stated above.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
would be proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wanyuan (ZEJ7t) (“Mr. Li") has been appointed as the
Acting Chairman and Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 22 October 2021. Mr. Li. aged 59, is an entrepreneur. In 1999,
he started running factories and founded Zhuhai Wanyi Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (BREMEBELEEAEMRAA), which mainly engaged in
sales of electrical machinery and equipment and provision of repair
and maintenance services in PRC. In April 2003, Mr. Li founded
Zhuhai Xiangzhou Wanxin Electricial (38 T &M B # E X &
77) which was mainly engaged in wholesale of electrical products. In
December 2003, Mr. Li started to engage in webbing business and
founded Zhongshan Nan Qu Wanlong Webbing Factory ( /LI 7 5 [&
BRBTRH) .

Ms. Lin Yuxi (& E) (“Ms. Lin") has been appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 October
2020. Ms. Lin, aged 32, graduated from University of East London
and obtained a degree of bachelor of arts in business management
in 2014. After graduation, Ms. Lin gained extensive experience in
corporate management and strategic planning. Before joining us,
Ms. Lin was the director of general department of Beijing Tengyuan
New Energy Technology Consultancy Service Limited (1t 5 R #7 8%
R EARBERATR) .
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung (&) (“Mr. Chow") has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 13 August 2019. Mr. Chow, aged 42, has over 13 years
of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Chow was an audit
manager at KPMG and was a vice president of corporate finance at
Chung Tai Printing (China) Co., Ltd. Since February 2018, Mr. Chow
has been a non-independent non-executive director of Industronics
Berhad, a company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (stock
code: 9393). Since 29 January 2021, Mr. Chow has been appointed
as an independent executive director of Echo International Holdings
Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock exchange (stock code:
8218). Mr. Chow was admitted as a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February 2005. Mr. Chow
obtained a bachelor of business administration degree from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in June 2001.

Mr. Lin Yugang (#F[) (“Mr. Lin"), aged 53, graduated from
Sun Yat-Sen University with a bachelor’'s degree in management,
and completed the master's program in accounting at the School of
Management of Sun Yat-Sen University in 2008. From 1987 to 2001,
he served in the Department of International Business at the Bank
of China for a total of 14 years, where he was primarily responsible
for reviewing offshore letters of credit. Subsequently, he became
an industry expert and was the youngest director of a branch in
Zhongshan City. Mr. Lin was released from work for studying in Sun
Yat-Sen University during 2003, and subsequently resigned from his
position at the Bank of China and successfully founded a number
of companies. Currently, he works at HILIFAPREREEER
fR A 7] (Zhongshan City Xunxiang Equity Investment Management
Company*), and also holds the positions of director and financial
controller at EEXHE (BER)IRAEB AR AT (Chemeida
(Guangdong) Environmental Technology Limited*). Mr. Lin is a
banking and finance professional and an industry veteran in the field
of international trading.

Mr. Liu Junting (Z8[£#E) ("Mr. Liu”), aged 32, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 23 October 2019. Mr. Liu graduated from Beijing Institute of
Technology in July 2013. He is currently the assistant manager of
Zhuhai Lvzhou Industrial Limited. Since 14 January 2020, Mr. Liu has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1676).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry (“Mr. Tse”), aged 37, has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Group with effect from
7 November 2019. Mr. Tse has extensive experience in accounting,
auditing and finance fields. Mr. Tse was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of China Yuanbang Property Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (Stock Code: BCD.SI) from April 2016
to May 2018. Mr. Tse obtained a bachelor’s degree of Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Hong Kong in 2007. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEHEE

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present
the annual report of the Company with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is engaged in sales of shoes, clothes and others in Asia
and the design, manufacturing and sales of fabrics in the People’s
Republic of China. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group is engaged in the sales of shoes, clothes and others, and
manufacturing and sale of fabrics and yarns. Business analysis of
sales, segment results, total assets and capital expenditure are set out
in note 8 to the accompanying financial statements.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group’s revenue mainly came from two main geographical areas,
the Mainland China and Korea. Geographical analysis of the Group
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance or position of the Company’s business, please refer to
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and
the environment. The Group understands that a better future depends
on everyone's participation and contribution. It has encouraged all
employees to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE €4 &

Thanks to its active engagement in the enhancement of management
measures and technology improvement, the Group incurred less unit
electricity consumption and expenses in production as compared to
that of last year. The Group also advocated conservation of resources
in office and encouraged employees to develop good habits, conserve
resources and energy to build a green and comfortable office
environment. The Group will issue a separate environmental, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 December 2021 in due
course with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. As at 31 December 2021, no reserve of the Company was
available for distribution (2020: Nil).

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations during
the year (2020: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of and reasons for movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year under review are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 142 to 144 of this
annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights over shares of the
Company under the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-laws"”) or the laws
of Bermuda where the Company is incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

The Board appointed WORLD LINK CPA Limited (“Worldlink”) as
the auditor of the Company with effect from 7 December 2018.
Worldlink resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from
10 February 2020.

The Board has appointed McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited (“McMillan Woods”) with effect from 10 February 2020
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Worldlink.
McMillan Woods will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company on 29 June 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. Lin Guogin (Resigned as Acting Chairman and executive director
on 22 October 2021)

Mr. Li Wanyuan (Appointed as Acting Chairman and
executive director on 22 October 2021)

Ms. Lin Yuxi

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Lin Yugang

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung

Mr. Liu Junting
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE €4 &

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Pursuant to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-
election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other
Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. None of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into by each of executive
directors as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ services
contracts” above, each of Mr. Li Wanyuan and Ms. Lin Yuxi is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$30,000 and HK$20,000, respectively. In
addition, pursuant to the above service contracts, each of them is
also entitled to a management bonus in respect of each financial year
in such sum as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine
aggregate amount of management bonuses payable to all directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for
the benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and
was in force throughout the year.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors confirmation of his/her independence and the
Company considers that each of them to be independent based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

REPORT EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the management on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to
the Board on the remuneration and other benefits paid by the
Company to the Directors by reference to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market rates. The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of 83
(as at 31 December 2020: 55). Employee costs including directors’
emoluments totalled RMB4.9 million for the year of 2021 (2020:
RMB4.8 million). The Group recruited and promoted individual
persons according to their strength and development potential. The
Group determined the remuneration packages of all employees
including the Directors with reference to individual performance and
current market salary scale.

The Group regularly reviews the emolument package of the existing
employees, considers increment of salaries and conducts some long
term incentive scheme when appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 14a to the
financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

A. Directors’ Interests in the Shares of the
Company
As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its Group members or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

B. Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares
of the Company
As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report, so
far as the Directors are not aware of any persons (not being a
Director of the Company) had or were deemed to have interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who will, directly or indirectly, be interested in 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted the share option scheme on
27 March 2014, and such scheme has become effective on the
Listing Date (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
of the eligible participants made to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors), the
Company’s subsidiaries, employees of the Group and other persons
the Board considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (i.e.
100,000,000 shares), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules. The subscription price of a share
in respect of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of
(a) the official closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and ()
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall remain
effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, 50,000,000 share options and
50,000,000 share options were granted and exercised, respectively,
representing maximum number of shares to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme. For details of the share option scheme, please
refer to page 57 to 58 of the 2016 annual report and page 44 to 45
of the 2015 annual report, respectively.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2021 Annual Report

Lt

iE R RE T &l
RARABR-_ZE—NE=ZA-_++tBEEHERMN
BREASE ZAZR LT RABREER([ER
BETE) R EE S EAEREAE
EEHERMMNAER2EE -EF A RIKE
RiEAEMBERERNES (REBYIENTE
) ARANMBRAR A£EBEEERESES
REHAEBEEHIBEHERMNEMAL
BHBRE - BRIBERET S TR ENER
RS RORNEE EREXETSHBAARRAR
BT AR10% (BI100,000,000 (%17 )
WARRABRBRERRAS ERBTHER 3L
MBNBHMBETERIN - X —FEEREAM
BEBRDORBEEINEEAUAN T =ZENESE
()R BE 2 P9 H3RERFTIRAR (D A IE YR
OZ2EREAHITAELEARORBEINE
AsRERMBFROOERFHUMNE: KK
pHEE-BREFS EZ BB 10F8HEMD
BAEM-

RZE—RAFR_ET—RFE+_A=+—H"
% Bl /50,000,00017 & % # 1 50,000,00017 &
At B R KT BDIR IR B IR 5T 81 A 3%
HRRGEE LR -ARERETENFS
BORSZE T NFFRESTEEAR-E
—RAFFIRFLI4T458 -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE €4 &

Share options granted

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity. For the share options granted by the Company,
when they are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
other reserve will continue to be held in other reserve.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. No
contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s largest and five largest customers were 6% and 18% of the
Group’s total sales respectively (2020: 8% and 24%). The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
were 29% and 80% of the Group's total purchases respectively
during the year under review (2020: 20% and 68%).

During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (who to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest
in any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its customers. A customer complaint handling
mechanism is in place to receive, analyse and study complaints and
make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality. The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers
and conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual
basis.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year under
review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions were incurred during the year ended
31 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, from the Listing Date
and up to the date of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital as required under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board intends to adopt a prudent dividend payment policy
which will base on the main factor of the Group'’s profitability for the
year. The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). As
there is no interim dividend payable during the year, there will be no
dividend distribution for the whole year at 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company comprises the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Regulatory
Compliance Committee as described from page 21 to 30 of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE €4 &

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he is neither engaged, nor
interested, in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
may compete with the Group’s business.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders of the Company, has entered into a
deed of non-competition on 27 March 2014 (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management
of potential conflicts between them and to enhance its corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the shares on the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to review
any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition during the Period.

On behalf of the Board

Li Wanyuan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 May 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

To the members of Moody Technology Holdings Limited

(Joint and Provisional liquidator appointed for restructuring purpose)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Moody Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 141, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B  Z H AT 8 &

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately RMB100,528,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021, and as at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately RMB1,071,627,000
and RMB1,047,797,000, respectively. Furthermore, as at 31
December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
RMB163,312,000 and its bonds of approximately RMB638,180,000
are subject to renewal or to be fully repaid within the next twelve
months as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the outcome of the negotiation with the creditors to
renew or extend the existing borrowings or debt financing to meet its
liabilities as they fall due in the foreseeable future. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would
result from the failure to meet in full its financial obligations in the
foreseeable future. We consider that the material uncertainty has
been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
However, in view of the extent of the uncertainty relating to the
continued support of the Group’s bankers and bondholders, we
disclaim our opinion in respect of the material uncertainty relating to
the going concern basis.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

TREREANEE
FRFELENERTHBERE
BRmEIEAHUBRERWEA 2R E5EH
HE - T -_—F+-_A=+—HLFEEHS
BB ARK100,528,000 KR T — —
F+_A=Z+—HB EBEENTHEEF
ERBEBEFEIRNAARK1,071,627,000
TR AR®1,047,797,0007C oM R ZF
“T—FE+-A=+—H' BEEKNETER
HANERM163,312,000 0 MEABEHARE
638,180,000 0 7] ¥ E 4 sk i & O 5 75w =R B
HUBEERAR T —EAARNTHEE-ZSE
BRHFAPAFEERTHPREZ Afeel &%
ENHBECE I ERERRM -AHTBR
REFEREEERE HERMEUAREE
BAERZER NEENLERBEERRE
HEE RARRRKEEEINBHABE -0
BHRELTBEERABRRAEZEBITEY
BETHEENENAR - EEREBEATH
HREZEREAHTBRRADFEZE- AWM &
B EEBESRTEAEFFEABTEIREN
THPREZNEE ESETRBELEEED
EATHPEERERER

ESHAOMBRRNEE

EXRERBEERSTEAESTSHRMOBER
B RS R 2 RIA R BB R RHE BB 52 5E IR TE AR
HEERAFHAHBBRR YAEEFR
RBLBOEBARES - LS A M BRE
RETFEEAHERRE (THwEEERFL
BHAR TSI E) -

MR ERAAERLQT
2021 FEWRE

49



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & Y X BT i &

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA”) and to issue an auditor's report.
However, because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chi Kong

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07348

24/F., Siu On Centre
188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 24 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
O EERAMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—F-——F+ A=+ AILFE

2021 2020
—B=—% _T_=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT

Revenue = 9 155,541 206,666
Cost of sales SHE KA (151,914) (218,981)
Gross profit/(loss) ER(£8) 3,627 (12,315)
Other income H A 10 21,078 40,825
Impairment losses for trade and 8 5 L H MW FIERE

other receivables E518 (20,090) (11,944)
Selling and distribution costs HE Mo HEAAK (3,023) (7,362)
General and administrative expenses — R MITHFEX (33,836) (101,344)
Loss from operations EERFER (32,244) (92,140)
Finance costs BhE KA 11 (68,284) (126,909)
Loss before tax MRBATEE (100,528) (219,049)
Income tax expense RS = 12 - -

Loss and total comprehensive income EAREBEAEBEEAEE

for the year attributable to RE2HEKHAE
the owners of the Company 13 (100,528) (219,049)
(Restated)
(&&E5))
Loss per share BREER
Basic (RMB) AR (ARE) 16(a) (2.24) (7.59)
Diluted (RMB) e (AR 16(b) (2.24) (7.59)

MR ERAAERLQT 51
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B Ot AR &

At 31 December 2021
R-—FE-——F+—HA=+—H

2021 2020
— B —F —_E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RN 17 189,587 209,714
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 18 16,626 17,032
Investment in an associate R—REBERRMRE 19 - -
206,213 226,746
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 2,012 3,599
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H eI FRIE 21 17,256 46,339
Bank and cash balances SRIT MBS0 22 2,235 3,571
21,503 53,509
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b S 5RI8 23 291,359 275,524
Borrowings B 24 801,492 707,743
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 279 -
1,093,130 983,267
Net current liabilities REBEETHE (1,071,627) (929,758)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABHEE (865,414) (703,012)

5 2 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & 6f 81 #& ik iR &
At 31 December 2021
R-FE-Z—F+=H=+—H

2021 2020
— B —F —_E-F

\[e} (=1 RMB’000 RMB'000
B = AR® T ARBEFIT

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 24 169,452 243,177
Lease liabilities HEARG 25 145 -
Deferred income PRIEUT A 26 12,786 13,098
182,383 256,275
Net liabilities B8EFHE (1,047,797) (959,287)

Equity &

Share capital fi% s 28 4,431 3,100
Reserves & 29 (1,052,228) (962,387)
Capital deficiency F% 7N fEs5 At (1,047,797) (959,287)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on R-TZ-_—_FHA_+NAEEETS ELRK

24 May 2022. -
Li Wanyuan Lin Yuxi
FER ME R
Director Director
EBEF EF
MmN ERGERQF 53



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SO EEEEH R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEr—F—

— A=t —EIL

Share  Contributed Capital Statutory  Accumulated
capital surplus reserve reserve losses Total
& BaR4 BAGE EE R RifEE @t
(note 29 (a)) (note 29 (b)) (note 29 ()
(W&29@)  (M&R29b)  (ER29(0)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TRT AR¥Tx  AR%TR
At 1 January 2020 RZ2-%%-A-A 1,505 649,383 113,510 24151 (1,548,337) (759,788)
Placing of new shares under general M* ﬂﬂ‘i REENRN
mandate (note 28(a) and 28(c)) (P &E28(@)528(0)) 871 9,666 - - - 10,537
Issue of shares upon rights issue HREETRG
(note 28(b) (Mi£28(b)) 724 9,079 - - - 9,803
Share issue expenses ROBIRY - (790) - - - (790)
Loss and total comprehensive income FRBERZANGES
for the year - - - - (219,049) (219,049)
Changes in equity for the year FRERZEY 1,595 17,955 - - (219,049) (199,499)
At 31 December 2020 and RZBZFF+ZA=+-AkK
1 January 2021 “F--%-f-H 3,100 667,338 113,510 24,151 (1,767,386) (959,287
Subscription of new shares under general R - RTEREFRHA
mandate (note 28(d) and 28(e)) (P zE28(d) ) 28(e) ) 1,331 11,028 - - - 12,359
Share issue expenses RBBTER - (341) - - - (341)
Loss and total comprehensive income FRABBREAUEAR
for the year - - - - (100,528) (100,528)
Changes in equity for the year EREREEH 1,331 10,687 - - (100,528) (88,510)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%#+ZA=+-H 4,431 678,025 113,510 24,151 (1,867,914)  (1,047,797)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Aﬁiﬁﬁljlb ’13—‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—F-——F+ A=+ AILFE

2021 2020
— B —F —_E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 3 AR® T AREETTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETEHABHEERE
Loss before tax R ATE 1B (100,528) (219,049)
Adjustments for: HTIEBEELFE:
Amortisation of deferred income I FE YA B 5 (312) (312)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREETE
equipment 21,572 23,341
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREENE 406 444
Finance costs Al E A A 68,284 126,909
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment ¥ BiE & &/E 2
losses of property, plant and equipment CRE/BERER),
BB EE (2,888) 22,731
Impairment losses of right-of-use assets FERAREEZREEIE 568 -
Impairment losses of inventories FEZRERRE - 19,659
Impairment losses of trade receivables E 5 WA 7 BB EE 4,996 9,228
Impairment losses of other receivables E o pE WG IE 2R EE R 15,094 2,716
Impairment losses of prepayments TETRIE 2 REEE 2,106 21,940
Interest income FLEHA (4) 3)
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE  BEREH
plant and equipment and RERAEEEEE
right-of-use assets - 3,816
Write off of property, plant and equipment  Hi$5¥% « BE MR & 1,443 -
Write off of inventories miEFE 1,160
Net foreign exchange gains PE X Uk #5558 (21,549) (51,296)
Operating loss before LEERNEHRIKEERE
working capital changes (9,652) (39,876)
Decrease in inventories FERAD 427 20,603
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 N H b e W SRR R >
other receivables yae:3p 6,887 (7,878)
Increase in trade and other payables g 5 I EAth B A FRIE S N 2,021 11,300
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFAESFE (317) (15,851)

mEBEROARD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &t R&RE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR®BT R ARETF T
Cash flow from investing activities RETEBHEERE
Purchases of items of property, EBEWE BER
plant and equipment HEEE - (1,626)
Net proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment and BERERAEEE
right-of-use assets Fr{5 5/ I8)F 58 - 64,239
Interest received 2B 4 3
Net cash generated from REZHMEBREFH
investing activities 4 62,616
Cash flow from financing activities RETEEBEERE
Borrowings raised E5EXK - 6,308
Repayment of borrowings BEEX (12,885) (73,611)
Principal element of lease payments HMENFRAEE D (144) -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEMNE (12) -
Proceeds from issue of shares BITHRAD P15 RRIE 12,359 10,537
Proceeds from rights issue HER PTG FRIE - 9,803
Share issue expenses MR BATH X (341) (790)
Net cash used in financing activities REEETARSFEHE (1,023) (47,753)
Net decrease in cash and ReRBESESEYRIFE
cash equivalents (1,336) (988)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZEEK
at 1 January RE&ZEY 3,571 4,559
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—HA=+—-HZ2
at 31 December ReRASEEY 2,235 3,571

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBESZEYIN
Cash and bank balances B & MIRIT4 22 2,235 3,571
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Moody Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
on 29 April 2013. On 23 May 2019, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) has been de-registered in
the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda (the “Change
of Domicile”). The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at 20/F, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) since 25 April 2014 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Winding-up petition and appointment of the
joint and several provisional liquidators for
restructuring purpose

On 20 September 2019, the Company received a petition (the
“Petition”) from Su Dajie (the “Petitioner”), a holder of the 2%
bond and 2.5% bond in the principal amount of approximately
HK$3,000,000 and HK$3,006,000 issued by the Company on
12 April 2018 and 13 April 2018 (collectively, the “Bonds”)
respectively, in the matter of the Companies (Winding Up
and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32, Laws of
Hong Kong) filed in the High Court of The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) under Companies
Winding-up Proceedings No. 283 of 2019, alleged that the
outstanding indebtedness owed by the Company to him up to
11 March 2019 was approximately HK$2,890,000. The winding
up petition was heard before the High Court on 20 November
2019. In connection with the Petition, the Company has
engaged professional parties to work out a restructuring plan
for the Company’s indebtedness. Such restructuring plan had
been filed to the Supreme-Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Court”).
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
Winding-up petition and appointment of the
joint and several provisional liquidators for

restructuring purpose (continued)

To facilitate the Company's financial restructuring, on
10 October 2019, a winding up petition together with an
application for the appointment (the “JPL Application”) of
Tang Chung Wah and Kan Lap Kee of Shinewing Specialist
Advisory Services Limited and Edward Alexander Niles Whittaker
of R&H Services Limited respectively was appointed as joint
and several provisional liquidators of the Company (together
“JPLs") on a light touch approach for restructuring purpose was
presented and filed with the Bermuda Court by the Company’s
Bermuda Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman at the request of the
Company.

Under the JPL Application, the Company sought an order
from the Bermuda Court so that the board of directors of the
Company should under the monitoring of the JPLs, continue to
manage the Company’s affairs in all respects and exercise the
powers conferred upon it by the Company’s Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws, provided always that, the JPLs should
have the power to seek such directions from the Bermuda
Court as the JPLs are advised are appropriate to maximize the
prospects of the financial restructuring being successful and to
provide a moratorium to avoid a disorderly insolvency liquidation
of the Company and its subsidiaries by any of the creditors who
have threatened to commence liquidation proceedings.

On 5 March 2020, upon the joint application of the Petitioner
and the Company by way of the consent summons, an order
was made by the High Court that the Petition be dismissed.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB"). IFRSs comprise International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”); International Accounting Standards (“IAS™);
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 4 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB100,528,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at 31 December
2021, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately RMB1,071,627,000 and RMB1,047,797,000
respectively. Furthermore, as at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
bank borrowings of approximately RMB163,312,000 and its
bonds of approximately RMB638,180,000 are subject to renewal
or to be fully repaid within the next twelve months as disclosed
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
going concern basis. These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the outcome of the negotiation with
the creditors to renew or extend the existing borrowings or
debt financing to meet its liabilities as they fall due. Should
the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements, to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs
(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs 4. IR#MNEFF & L& B MR B 8 3R
& B @)

(Continued) (=T P2

(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EHEMERKERNWIHFT REL
effective 1857 Bl R Bt 7% 3R 5 2E A
The Group has not early applied new and revised IFRSs REBUTRMBAIEARZ-_Z Z_—F
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the —A—ARBENFRFEEEME
financial year beginning 1 January 2021. These new and M 2R A BB T ET R ASHE BT B B B 7
revised IFRSs include the following which may be relevant HEER o ZFEIE] RS FT BIBR B
to the Group. T E AR B 1S A] B B R &R [ AE

AT & IE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT B#=®
ZERBNE
HI £ K
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combination B0 ES B 750 & XE BI S5 355 (1&35]) 1 January 2022
— Reference to the Conceptual Framework EHE 0 — RS SESR e
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and et ERIE 1658 (1BF]) % - 1 January 2022
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use  BiE MR — (B E AR A - _F—H—H
FiS k18
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts H [R5 2RI 379 (125]) 1 January 2022
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract BEEH —BITEHZKAE T _F—H—H
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018 — 2020 B BmEEN_—_E—-N\FE 1 January 2022
Cycle —E-TFRFENE - _F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of e ERIE15E (1B83]) BE& 1 January 2023
Liabilities as Current or Non-current DERTBHIETRE —E-=%—H—H
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of FER et ERE 15 (B5]) I 1 January 2023
Financial Statements and HKFRS Practice B2V RBEAMBREREY —E-=F—H—H
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements & 752 AR 55257 117 = 21 #
— Disclosure of Accounting Policies — BEEEECR
Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, R ERIESTE (1B8F]) &5 1 January 2023
Changes in Accounting Estimates and SR E REE T =%—H—H
Errors — Definition of Accounting Estimates ~ — &&HEETESE
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes — REETAERIZE1298 (1BF]) 1 January 2023
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and ST —HEERHEEN —E-=%—H—H
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction BEENBEAHENELERIE
Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19 Related BB B B i & E RN 1657 (185]) 1 April 2021
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 ZEZ—FXA=TRHZEN T —FMmMA—H
WEIBHENE TR
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REBIRIEFAZFERT R E
what the impact of these amendments and new standards AR ERERHARBEREENTE-
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So HBHEBA AEERABRMNZEZER
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely NI EBITN KA g8 & o 1%
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial WREXEATE -
statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 6.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

5.

64
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Associates (continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group'’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the Group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

(9]

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency

as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part

of the gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Office equipment and furniture 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available
for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets, which for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognizes the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

0]

()

instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

0]

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the sale of manufactured products is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the buyer’s
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the buyer
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to
the buyer as this represents the point in time at which the
right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(r)

(s)

(iij) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii)) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the

payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies I1AS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or a parent of the

Company.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)
(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to
which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating
unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
and other receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and
other receivables. The ECL on these financial assets
are estimated using the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group's
core operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables
that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under ligquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date determined based on historical trend, the
Group's understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.
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5.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(x)

(y)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the outcome of the negotiation with
the creditors to renew the existing borrowings or debt
financing to meet its liabilities as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Details are explained in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information.
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E_—Ff_A=F—HIFFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts. Changing the assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 were
approximately RMB189,587,000 and RMB16,626,000
respectively (2020: RMB209,714,000 and RMB17,032,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(b) Allowance for inventories

(@

Allowance for inventories is made based on an assessment
of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances
are applied to inventories when events or changes on
circumstances indicated that the net realisable values is
lower than the cost of inventories or that the inventories
have no further use. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

No allowance for slow-moving inventories was made
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Allowance for
inventories of approximately RMB19,659,000 was made for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Impairment loss for trade and other receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and other
receivables based on the credit risk of trade receivables
and other receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables is approximately RMB8,801,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB32,360,000) (2020: RMB40,802,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB848,588,000)).

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BP_FE_—Ff _H=1—HIFE

6. ERHHREEMT @

B THEEEZETERR @
(b)) ZEBHE

(c)
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FEIELE—FAE AAFEFE
BE-EREESRAE LG
e BRZERERERINRRG
A REFERSFELAGSH LIRS
HHRTEROERBEEN &
[E] o

REBE_ZT-_—F+=-H=+—H
HFEESERFHETESRER -
HEZ-Z_FEF+=-_A=+—H
HEFEEFHGEERENARE
19,659,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEr—FT-—Ff+=-—H=1—HIFFE
7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.

90

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in the currencies other than functional
currencies of the Group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the exchange rate of HK$, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss after tax due to changes in
the value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE=-—F
+=A=+—HLFE

Bt 75 JE B 2R
KS‘EI?&%&@JE% BoEER - \1%
SN RV - 5 B R R B 1 R B B R R
ELA°$‘$IE’J%§’&3H$§EI¥B#/£ECT
AEANESETS X “ﬁﬁ¢1&¥¢$%
Eﬁﬁﬁfﬁbﬁﬁ/aETﬂE”

(a) sMEEELBR
ZISEIE%%:FQI\@EH AR E A
DEBRZ BEERBEASEER
IR E R SN BB FHE -

AEEBEMTERINERZ  BER
BEGIEIINELPER - AEEZY)
EL R HSME BB - 3 K 53 B B B
EARIME R

TRBTEEZHEMEETENE
AT HAEBEERBEEEZLM
EENARERTREBERY RSN
KRB TUIE R & 1B £ 1L 1) §UK
E

Functional

currency
strengthened/ (Increase)/
((WEELGE D)) decrease in

by loss after tax

TheeEE R~ MR & E 18
(R E5) (&), WL

% RMB’000

ARBT T

5%/(5%) 40,382/(40,382)

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_Z-F
+ZA=+—RHLFE

5%/(5%) 39,085/(39,085)

(Note) (Ffi&E)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on
borrowings denominated in HK$.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities of trade and
other receivables and bank balances. The Group'’s
exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 90 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 30 days
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BP_FE_—Ff _H=1—HIFE

MR EE @®
(b) EERB

EERREERGYHFHELET
ST ARBEFAOMRENET:
NBEXTBEENRR KNEE
EARATHEEEH(EHREME
W RIB LA K SR1T 4 %Ngim:f
AEEAZRITEHNEER
ﬁ@ TR R %ﬁ?ﬁﬁl%:ﬁ
TREELRTEEETIRNETR
CRERB MALSERAKEER

i o
AA

AEBEVEEREERR-

EXBELTEASERERARER
EERMRERNBEE B REER
RT EEZFEERR HMeY
MEELERBLE - E2BNEER
M P ETEMNEER - ET
HEEPEBEMIIHMERLE LA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. UHERARERE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) %E@@ (#)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables REEZER N EHB ZEHTE
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. As the Group's FEBEENSHTEE SHEWKIE
historical credit loss experience does not indicate WEEREE AR AEEBEEEES
significantly different loss patterns for different customer BEATEABEBRITRER 5 0
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is WAREEER R EBRERTE
not further distinguished between the Group's different HRATENBERBEASET
customer bases. REFHECLEEE—FTED -

The following table provides information about the TRIBEEEHEASEMEYHNE S
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade BWREZ FERR RBREEE
receivables: BER:

2021
—E-—F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
BHEEE EREAE ERRE
RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBT R

Current (not past due) ENER (R Hp) - - -
Less than 3 months past due BEDH3(E A 2.2% 1,373 30
Over 3 months but less than B ERERR3ME A B D RelE A

6 months past due 2.2% 370 8
Over 6 months but less than B ER R R6ME A8 D ofE A

9 months past due 24.6% 443 109

2,186 147

9 2 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 R R M &F

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

B 7% B B B 2R (0
(b) =&k @

2020
it Sk 325
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

RHYBER REAE EREE

RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTT ARETRL

Current (not past due) BIH (RaHp) - - -
Less than 3 months past due #HR VPR3 A 0.2% 4,475 10

Over 3 months but less than A Hi B 83 (E A 1B A h6(E A
6 months past due 2.9% 2,280 67

Over 6 months but less than 8 H B 86 (R A 1B A R9(E A
9 months past due 11.4% 2,887 330
Over 9 months past due 1 ER9ME A A | 100.0% 815,951 815,951
825,593 816,358

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience.
The above expected loss rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the trade receivables.

BHIEEXDARERERERAE -
LABHEER KRR LRRIL
5 2 SR B R0 A BN ~ B AT IR
MARAEBEE 5 KB ANTAH
FHHBEERR 2B EANER-

alj
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7.
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

B Rk E B @

(b) EEREE @
FRESEWNKBBEREEZSH W
T

2021 2020
—F¥=-—F —ETHF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®ET T ARBETT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 816,358 807,130
Impairment losses recognised FRERRREEE

for the year 4,996 9,228
Write off W 8H (821,207) -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 147 816,358

For other receivables, the Group recognises lifetime ECL
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the other receivables has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for the other receivables at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECL for other
receivables which has significant increase in the credit risk:

SREMEBUFKIEMNS  AEBEEER
& 18 B )16 R 2B R A 1R 18 0 B AE R
2HBEHMEEER -AM HWEMLE
Wk IR B B R R B 1) 16 #E R R
BARER AKEAZET @A
BHEEEERSNERTERMD
TR LA 75K T ) S 1R R A o

TREKEBAKBEMEHZEE
RBREBRER M EMERFKEAEZ
EERREEHREEBERERNT

2021
—E-_—5F

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FRHEER fRE#AE EBEERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
Internal credit rating W E R % AR®TR AR%¥TR
Stage 1 F—IEE 0.1% 6,208 6
Stage 2 FIEER 2.2% 569 12
Stage 3 F=PEE 24.6% 4 1
Default EH 100% 32,19 32,194
38,975 32,213
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7.
(b) Credit risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

B 7% B B B 2R (0
(b) EE=RE @

2020
—E-TF

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
|loss rate amount allowance
RHERX ARE A BiER s

RMB'000

Internal credit rating R EB 15 E R % ARETT
Stage 1 F—PEER 0.2% 11,183 33
Stage 2 FERBER 2.9% 4,052 118
Stage 3 F=PEER 33%-62% 42,355 25,872
Default EH 100% 6,207 6,207
63,797 32,230

The above expected loss rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the other receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for other receivables
during the year is as follows:

EAERERRIERHE  ARBRI
S 2R MR A LEAMR - B AT
LA B 7K 5 B S E A FE URR TR Y B
HFEMMEEERR 2B ENER -

FREMEBRFABRREZZNT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-THF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 32,230 29,514
Impairment losses recognised FREERREEE
for the year 15,094 2,716
Write off g (15,111) -
At 31 December W+-A=+—H 32,213 32,230
WHBBEROGERALD A 95
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE —F - —Ff —H=+—HIFE

7.

926

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s bonds bear interests at fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest-rate risk
arises from its bank borrowings. The bank borrowings
bear interests at variable rates that vary with the then
prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variable held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax.

7.

B Rk E B @

(9]

A 2= 2 B
AEBZBEHFREEMNEGE QA
EERNTFENERER -

A 88 B R R L AR 5
HIRTT B RIT R DR H 5
g EEEBRATRMARED-

B bt 3 5 - AN 5% 8 50 R 5 HR ORI
HMEAHEBEERAE HBAR
RERSRERNE D TXHIHH =R

Bl EE

THRETERBHMBERT T
B8R T 7 6 1 10 A1 S 1B 4
) 2 TR B E B A U -

Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) in decrease in
interest rate loss before tax
Fl=E MRBLATE B
CR2)  (&m)
% RMB’000
AR TR
For the year ended BE-ZE-_—F
31 December 2021 +TZA=+—BLEFE 1%/(1%) (1,641)/1,641
For the year ended HE-_Z-ZTHF
31 December 2020 T A=+—BIFE 1%/(1%)  (1,692)/1,692
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7.
(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’'s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

MR EE @®
(d) FEh1E=E b

AR B BOR & BB A I TR
MBERER UHREEFARR
TREANDEHEEHLRBORY

TRIFAEESREBERERSE
PREAMABRGRE (BREERA
HMMERGFER (MBFHN )R
EHEHMBRTHEFEORNEAMAR)
RAEEAREFEERNRANKER

the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can Bt EmFEBEHFH-
be required to pay.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEBIENMETRBERS QR
cash flows of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities REESRENIHBELITAT :
is as follows:

On demand
or less than 1t02 2t05 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total

—FR —E@M¥  WERE  AFNE Eh
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARMTR AR%TR AR®T:R

31 December 2021 ZE--5+ZA=+-H

Trade and other payables S RHEtEME 280,446 - - - 280,446
Borrowings EES 805,771 70,124 34,729 103,569 1,014,193
Lease liabilities HERE 294 147 - - 44
31 December 2020 ZZ-TFFZA=1-H

Trade and other payables B 5 REMERTE 261,027 - - - 261,027
Borrowings TN 712,223 23,411 189,647 90,903 1,016,184

alj
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

gﬁ

7.

98

E_—Ff_A=F—HIFFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B 7 [ B B B ()
(e) Categories of financial instruments at e) R+T-A=+—Hz€®mIA
31 December k=Pl
2021 2020
B —fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ Tt AR¥TF T
Financial assets: EMEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEK A ENERMEE 11,036 44,373
Financial liabilities: EHMmaes:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEHEK A ENERAsE 1,251,390 1,211,947

(f) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
has two reportable segments as follows:

- Sales of fabrics; and
- Sales of shoes, clothes and others

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and
marketing strategies.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuec) 8. ZHMEHRmW
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the KESHNEABFE RS HTBREWMT

same as those described in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profit or loss do not include other income,
selling and distribution costs, general and administrative
expenses and finance costs. Segment assets do not include

SPril 2 @ st B MR - D BB T B &
HA WA HERD KA — R EITH
M MBEXRN - D HEETBEEER
NE-RN—HEBERANRENRRTR

lease office, investment in an associate and bank and cash Redn oHaBE I BEHEABERE
balances. Segment liabilities do not include lease liabilities and Ko
borrowings.
Shoes,
clothes
Fabrics and others Total
HE RER
[k HiigHeE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Segment results DEEE
Year ended 31 December 2021: BE-_ZE—-—F%

Reportable revenue from external

+-A=+—HLEE:

KESMNBE P #A] 2 i

customers 29,896 125,645 155,541
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A2®/HE (BER),IEF (18,050) 1,587 (16,463)
Other income HE A 21,078
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ry A AN (3,023)
General and administrative expenses —f& & 1T 2 (33,836)
Finance costs BhE AR (68,284)
Loss before tax B T4 Al s 18 (100,528)
Other segment items HitnHEA
Depreciation of property, ME - BRELRBITE

plant and equipment 21,428 144 21,572
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ {F A EETE 406 - 406
Impairment losses of trade receivables & 5 [iE Uz} 18 2 5L (B &5 18 4,996 - 4,996
Impairment losses of other receivables E fth & U X 18 ~ Jsl (B &5 18 13,961 1,133 15,094
Impairment losses of prepayments T 5018 7 R {EE 18 2,106 - 2,106
Reversal of impairment losses of ME BREMERBZRE

property, plant and equipment =gk (2,888) - (2,888)
Write off of property, WIE Y E - WE

plant and equipment B - 1,443 1,443
Write off of inventories s E - 1,160 1,160

R BEROGERLD A 99
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. AHFERmW

100

Segment results
Year ended 31 December 2020:

Reportable revenue from external

PREE
BE-_ZT_-_ZF
+-A=t—-BLEE:

KEINEE PRl 2 Wk

Shoes,
clothes
and others

EBE - RER

Fabrics

E# Hib3H &

RMB'000
ARBTTT

RMB'000
ARBTTT

customers 15,223 191,443 206,666
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A2/ (E18) T (30,903) 6,644 (24,259)
Other income H AU A 40,825
Selling and distribution costs $HE & SRR (7,362)
General and administrative expenses  — % & 77 B X2 (101,344)
Finance costs A& A (126,909)
Loss before tax BRI AT E 18 (219,049)
Other segment items HitmERE R
Additions to property, NEWME  BEREE

plant and equipment - 1,626 1,626
Depreciation of property, ME - BRERRBITE

plant and equipment 23,302 39 23,341
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ {FFEEEITE 444 - 444
Impairment losses on property, Y- BB MEEREER

plant and equipment 22,731 - 22,731
Impairment losses of inventories GFEZRBERE 19,659 - 19,659
Impairment losses of trade receivables & 5 & Us Z¢ 18 2 J5i (8 &5 18 9,228 - 9,228
Impairment losses of other receivables E i & Uk 2/ T8 ~ s B &5 18 2,680 36 2,716
Impairment losses of prepayments  FEftFIE 2 B EE 18 21,940 - 21,940
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - HEREER

plant and equipment and FHRREEZEIE

right-of-use assets 3,816 - 3,816

2021 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. AHFERmW

Shoes,
clothes
Fabrics and others Total

BE RER

E Hitr st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®Trn AR®TR

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE

At 31 December 2021: R=B=—F
t=RA=+—-8:

Segment assets PWEE 220,145 5,336 225,481
Unallocated assets KoL &EE 2,235
Total assets EEHMEE 227,716
Segment liabilities PEHEE 304,132 13 304,145
Unallocated liabilities KOBEE 971,368
Total liabilities BEHEE 1,275,513

Shoes,
clothes
Fabrics and others

BB RERK

ik, Hith
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR

Segment assets and liabilities PWEERERE

At 31 December 2020: R-IB-EF
+=A=+—8:

Segment assets DEBEE 268,113 8,571 276,684
Unallocated assets ADEE 3,571
Total assets BEEHE 280,255
Segment liabilities PEEE 288,452 170 288,622
Unallocated liabilities ApBEBaE 950,920
Total liabilities BEAHE 1,239,542
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Geographical information
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of
operations are detailed below:

2B E B ®

i & E R

N R 8 0B U 26 IR A B B
T

2021 2020
—g-—§ -T-TF

—_—=— —=

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBETIT

The People’s republic of China (the “PRC") FZEARLFME ([FEH]) 29,896 15,563
Korea 2 95,541 173,610
Hong Kong B - 1,374
The United States e 5,079 2,580
Japan =[N 16,678 8,713
Others Hb 8,347 4,826

155,541 206,666

Over 90% of the Group's non-current assets (excluding
investment in an associate) are located in the PRC. Accordingly,
no further geographical information of non-current assets to be
disclosed.

No customer contributed 10% or more of the Group'’s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

9. REVENUE 9.
Revenue represents the aggregation of net amounts received
and receivable during the year. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows:

HBIBINMN AKEFERBEE (TRAER
—BEBERRNRE) NP E - FiE -
BIRPDEEMNEMMEBENATRE-

HE_Z-_—F+-H=T—BHLFE"
BMEEFPEMAEEREZMI0O%I MU L
(ZZE_ZF 8|) -

iy 2
WaEFAE W R EYCFR AR NE
BEFERKEOTOT :

2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARETIT

Contracts with customers recognised at £ BIBR B 75 3R &5 22 BI 551 555 #3059

a point in time within the scope of X RHEBRCZEPE4:
IFRS 15:
Sales of fabrics RSNk 29,896 15,223
Sales of shoes, clothes and others HiE REREMBEE 125,645 191,443
155,541 206,666
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

10. OTHER INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

10. Efbir A

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

RMB'000 RMB'000

Amortisation of deferred income of
government grants relating to

B G 2 B U R AR AT
WA B (P RE())

AR® TR ARBETIT

assets (note (a)) 312 312
Government grants received (note (b)) BEWBFEEE (KsEDb)) - 104
Interest income FIEHA 4 3
Net foreign exchange gains & 5 U5 F 58 17,109 39,370
Processing fee income MIEWA - 198
Reversals of impairment losses of property, % BB M & 2

plant and equipment BB BB E 2,888 -
Others H A, 765 838

21,078 40,825
Notes: B 5T -

Local government grants were granted to a subsidiary of the
Group in respect of the leasehold land and right-of-use assets
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. There
were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these
government grants.

Local government grants were granted to a subsidiary of the
Group in respect of certain development projects during the year
ended 31 December 2020. There were no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies attached to these government grants.

REZE-_ZT=-—FRk=-_T=-_TF+=A
=+—BLFE AEE—HEKEA R
HELHWRFEAREERSHBNE TS
TEH B - Z S BT B | M R BT
R AEIR

REBE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE"
AEER-—HHRBARRE THEEBEEEE
R X T % T8 8 Bl o 5% 55 B R I
Pt S i R B AT I sk s A B 1B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt i sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

11. BERK

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%T AR FT

Interest expenses on bank borrowings HRITEFAF S 15,810 17,837
Interest expenses on bonds BEHMF B 52,462 109,072
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABENF ERX 12 -
68,284 126,909

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise
Income Tax are required since the Group has no assessable
profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the loss
before tax is as follows:

12. FiEHiBx<
MR AEBRBE-Z=—F+ =4
ST BULFELEERBEA  HBA
BT B (5 B R R B £ RIS B A 1
B(—T—TF &)

PG HR X KRR AT B B H SRR N T

104

2021 2020
—E_-——4F —EFE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR® T AREETTT
Loss before tax MRERIERE (100,528) (219,049)
Notional tax on loss before tax, BRERIBEZRETIE
calculated at the rates applicable EHEER G e ERR A
in the tax jurisdictions concerned HAMEFTE (20,816) (48,875)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable TRERBBA R AINBAS 2
and expenses that are not deductible W 10,968 12,833
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHEBEE BB EE 6,749 16,445
Tax effect of temporary differences in RERELEFRIBEERBERE
relating to impairment losses provision BEZEAERMEERE MG
for which no deferred tax assets was 2
recognised 3,099 19,597

Income tax expense

PSR X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
The Group's loss for the year is arrived at after charging/
(crediting) the following:

Auditor's remuneration
Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Net foreign exchange gains
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets
Impairment losses of inventories
Impairment losses of trade receivables
Impairment losses of other receivables
Impairment losses of prepayments
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets
Expenses relating to short-term lease
(included in cost of sales and general
and administrative expenses)
Write off of property, plant and equipment
Write off of inventories
Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

13. FAEE
AEEMEXNBRENSR, (5 A) T35
BEEEH:

2021 2020
—E——F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETTT
1% BRI 57 B 788 800
EEFEKAR 145,161 197,873
W WEREETE

21,572 23,341

FREEENE 406 444
P& W W F 58 (17,109) (39,370)
Wz B R OREBERE)

JSOREEE (2.888) 22,731
FREEEREBESE 568 -
GEZRBERSE - 19,659
g S REWGIE ZRESE 4,996 9,228
b fE IR 2 R BB 15,094 2,716
FENRIEREESE 2,106 21,940
HEWE - BER

BERERAEEE

518 - 3,816
FHERBHEENHY

(T ASHE AR

—MREITHERAX) 227 166
WEEM S - B MR 1,443 -
miEFE 1,160 -
BIRAN (BIEESHE)

— %% 4IF KRB 4,860 4,582
—IRREFET SR 30 190
4,890 4,772

Note: Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and staff costs
of approximately RMB3,813,000 and RMB2,130,000 (2020:
RMB2,459,000 and RMB542,000) were included in the cost of

sales.

ME BELEBETEANRE TRALY
AR ¥3,813,0007T & A KR #2,130,000
T (ZZFE=FF: AR®2,459,0007T &
AR#542,0007T) EFF ASHERA <

GEE

MR ERAAERLQT
2021 FEWRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEFERREZRS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section WEEE QD AIEHE3IINEIRE
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as MESMSmT:
follows:

2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Fees we 211 228
Other emoluments H A&
Salaries, allowances and e R REMHE
benefits in kind 796 1,311
Retirement benefit scheme BRI FET &I
contributions 15 31
811 1,342
1,022 1,570
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bf # 3% 3% Fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

14. ESEFNEERZ ®
(a) EEME w

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

31 December 2021

“E-_-f+ZA=1+-H

Fees

ik
RMB'000
M ARMTR

Notes

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

He 2ER
ENER
RMB'000
ARET T

Retirement
benefit
scheme

contributions
BIREF
B
RMB'000
ARETR

Total

st
RMB'000
AR®TR

Executive directors BITEE

Mr. Lin Guogin MEISR L & (i) - 548 12 560

Mr. Li Wanyuan FETLE ) - 49 3 52

Ms. Lin Yuxi mBELT - 199 - 199

Independent non-executive ~ BUYFHTES

directors

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung ABRLE 129 - - 129

Mr. Lin Yugang MFR L4 4 - - 4

Mr. Liu Junting BEEEE 40 - - 40
21 796 15 1,022

31 December 2020 “E-BF+ZA=t-H

Executive directors BITEE

Mr. Wu Jianxiong REUEE (i) - 427 16 443

Mr. Lin Guogin WEIH 5% - 586 15 601

Mr. Wang Zhiping FEFEE (i) - 253 - 253

Ms. Lin Yuxi mBERLT () - 45 - 45

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTESE

directors

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung AEELE 139 - - 139

Mr. Lin Yugang WFRI% & 45 - - 45

Mr. Liu Junting AEEEE 44 - - 44
228 1311 31 1,570

mEBEROSBERLQA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-——F+A=f—AIFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEFEM K fEm @

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME w
Notes: Bt At
(i)  Resigned as an executive director with effect from () BZTE_TF+-_A-+=HEH
23 December 2020. ERITES-
(i) Resigned as an executive director with effect from (ii) BE-ZE-_—F+A-+-A®BET
22 October 2021. HITES-
(i) Resigned as an executive director with effect from (i) BZZE-_ZTF+A+HBREEEIH
15 October 2020. TES-
(iv)  Appointed as an executive director with effect from (vv BZE-_ZTF+A+HBEEZE
15 October 2020. 5 im%%
(vy  Appointed as an executive director with effect from v EBEZE_—F+AZt-HREEZ
22 October 2021. ERHITES
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RER - $EE4H§$E&§_E A EMEE
or agreed to waive any emolument during the year (2020: MME s LB (ZZE_TF |) -
Nil).
During the year, no emolument has been paid to the RERN PEINIAME FEEE
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the US| N A 7R & B ko A R & B
Group; or as compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil). MBS EABBEE (=2 ZF
FmE) o
There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any RER $EEEWET—J%$§H&FEH
of the directors during the year (2020: Nil). FHHBREL(ZZEF &) -
(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, b) EERXE ZHIAEGHLHH

108

arrangements or contracts

Save for disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transaction, arrangement and
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 R R M &F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 15. AEESHEMA L
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year REA AEEBTEESFMATBEE=
included three (2020: three) directors whose emoluments FZ(ZZE-ZTF =ZZ)EF HEH i m
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 14 to the FAEHTHERRMF1ARH DT - Lo
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of the MB(ZZEZZF:MHB) AT HFH
remaining two (2020: two) individual are set out below: Dk

2021 2020
—E_—F —ET-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T

Salaries, allowances and e R RHEMEYN S
other benefits in kind 802 1,099
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R K4& K 5T 2] 4t 2% 15 16
817 1,115
The number of non-directors, highest paid employees, whose FWN T T EENIEESESHTHMA
emoluments fell within the following bands, is as follows: THEMAT:

Nil to RMB 1,000,000 &= AR%1,000,0007T 2 2
During the year, no emolument has been paid to these RER RNEEYN B|AIZERA T B
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group; - ERBFBMBRINBEAEE A LEE)
or as compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil). FIERBEBAEE (ZE_FF &) -
There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any of the REA BERNENESHNES X
highest paid employees during the year (2020: Nil). EAARMBIEA (ZE_SF &) -

RN BEROGERALA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F-——FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BIREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) EREXREIE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the BRARNBEDREBEATERTE
following:

2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Loss for the year attributable to owners & SMREAREIBTAZ
of the Company used in the basic RAGRHER AERGERNEE
loss per share calculation (100,528) (219,049)

Number of shares
B & B

2020
—E-THF

_(Re;ated)
(#2&E=75)

Weighted average number of ordinary st EE&REREIETAZ
shares in issue during the year used FADBITEBER

in basic loss per share calculation hnige 15 £ 44,808,194 28,864,918
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEE
No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company did EEI EAZIK ARBEE-_ZT-_—FK=
not have any dilutive potential ordinary share during the E-EF+ZA=+— E L1E 7 8 £
two years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. EMEEMETESEBR WESE

515 B S R 18

For the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted loss per HAEBE_T-_—GFR_ZFT_TFTZ
share for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the A=T—"BILEE28RERRESE
share consolidation of the Company being effective on 8 March BME AARERZZEZ_F=HANA
2022 (note 36(b)) was deemed to be effective throughout the E oz A Bt (HsE36(0b)) R AR =
period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2021. T _EF-A-BRE_ZT-_—F+=

A=+—BILHEBER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
ECE A A= HIFFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % -HERRE
Office
Machinery  equipment
and and Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment furniture vehicles  in progress Total
N
BEY RERZE k&R BH ERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost K&
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZF-A—H 397,956 207,773 2613 1318 1,518 611,178
Additions HE - 1,626 - - - 1,626
Disposals e (156,031) - (1,802) (629) - (158,462)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZBZEE+ZR=1-8
kZZ=-%-A-H 241,925 209,399 811 689 1,518 454,342
Write off s - (93,019) (39) (530) - (93,588)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=Z-%+ZA=+-H 201,925 116,380 m 159 1,518 360,754
Accumulated depreciation and impairment RHFERAE
At 1 January 2020 R-E-%%-A-H 148,569 140,548 2,385 1,188 - 292,690
Charge for the year ERTH 12,328 11,004 9 - - 23,341
Impairment losses HEEE - 22,674 2 55 = 22,731
Disposals e (91,950) - (1,617) (567) - (94,134)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
68,947 174,226 779 676 - 244,628
Charge for the year 10,955 10,617 - - - 21,512
Write off - (91,576) (39) (530) - (92,145)
Reversal of impairment losses HEBRRE - (2,888) - - - (2,888)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-£+ZB=t-8 79,902 90,379 740 146 - 171,167
Carrying amount RAEE
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-£+ZB=t-H 162,023 26,001 2 13 1,518 189,587
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+-A=1+-8 172,978 35,173 2 13 1518 209,714
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ontneesy  17. Y1 ¥ -BERFZE @®

As at 31 December 2021, buildings of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMB138,903,000 (2020:
RMB147,910,000) and machinery and equipment of the Group
with carrying amount of approximately RMB5,137,000 (2020:
RMB11,375,000) were pledged as collateral for certain bank
borrowings of the Group (note 24).

During the year of 2020, the Group’s leasehold land and
its factory buildings located in Shishi City of Fujian Province
(the”Shishi Buildings”), were pledged as collateral for bank
borrowings of approximately RMB96,500,000 in favour of two
local banks namely Rural Commercial Bank of Shishi and China
Merchants Bank, were forced sale to an independent third party
in a public auction held by the Shishi People’s Court of Fujian
Province at a consideration of approximately RMB69,223,000.
Since the operation and production of the Shishi Buildings were
suspended, the directors decided to make impairment for the
remaining machinery and equipment and office equipment,
furniture and vehicles accordingly.

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amount
of its property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2020 and 2021 with reference to the valuation performed by
an independent valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited. The
recoverable amount is assessed based on fair value less cost
of disposal by using depreciated replacement cost approach
which involves observable and unobservable inputs, including
replacement cost, estimated useful life and residual value, under
level 3 fair value measurement. During the two years, there
were no change in the valuation techniques used.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, reversal of
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB2,888,000 (2020: impairment losses
of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB22,731,000) was recognised in the profit or loss.

1 1 2 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

2021 Annual Report

WZE-—F+-A=+—H AEHFE
MmE Y ARE138,903,000 (- =&
F: ARM147,910,0007T ) BB &) A &
AEEKRE@ENHNARES 137,0000T (=
T -FFE: ARM11,375,0007T) My # 28

RECEBEAEES THRTERD
EiRdn (HFE24) -

R-E—ZEF AEENREREAMHT
MEETHRETHREED (TAMRE
W) BB FRRAMIRT BAM AR
BERITRBEET WRBRITEEY
AR #96,500,000T CREZELMH
ARZRZBITHARBEE EUHOARE
69,223,000 M EREEF LE T —28
VEZH -BARAMEERMNESMEE
BE{E EERTERAE RIS L RE
UEBRAERE RERERTIRAER
=

AEECD2EBUGHEMSETIHAER
NAETHHE BHENR TS ZZFR
—E-—F+-A=+—BHVE BE
MEEHATRESE - rJ B SREERSE
ZHRAFEAETNTEEENAX F
NABRE ARG ARG 228
BRA A ERFEEFGEE) UA
FEBEEKRAETG - RMERN FIE
FA &9 {d 18 F2 flg I¢ % & &) o

HE-Z-_—F+-A=+—8L#F
E - REZERVE BELRZERESB
BEDYARK2.888000T(ZE-F
FYE BELALBEREBBOARE
22,731,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 R R M &F

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

18. EHEEE

Leasehold
land and land Lease

use right office Total

HELH R
tifEAE HERAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETn AR%¥Tn AR%¥Tx
At 1 January 2020 WZE-ZZTF—F—H 21,203 - 21,203
Depreciation e (444) - (444)
Disposals HE (3,727) - 3,727

At 31 December 2020 and RZZZEF+A=+—HK

1 January 2021 —E-—%—F—H 17,032 - 17,032
Additions = - 568 568
Depreciation nE (406) - (406)
Impairment losses HERE - (568) (568)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZBZ—-5+-A=+-—H 16,626 - 16,626

As at 31 December 2021, leasehold land of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMB16,626,000 (2020:
RMB17,032,000) were pledged as collateral for certain bank
borrowings of the Group (note 24).

Lease liabilities of approximately RMB424,000 (2020: Nil) are
recognised with right-of-use assets which was fully impaired as
at 31 December 2021.

RZEBEZ—F+_A=+—H A£EEE
mMEHNBARE16,626000T (— T -=F
F:ARM®17,032,000T)NFEE T
BIRERSEEE THRTERKRF R (K
£T24) ©

R-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H HEEE
HAREEA24,0000 (2 T F 4 )HE
ERYREFEREEERR -

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARKET T
Depreciation expenses on TRAREEINERAX
right-of-use assets 406 444
Expenses relating to short-term lease EHAREENRY
(included in cost of sales and (GFABEER AR —M &
general and administrative expenses) THHAX) 227 166
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 1 F & &R EE 8 568 -
Loss on disposals of right-of-use assets HEFAEESERBE - 3,727

MR ERAAERLQT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

18. RIGHT‘OF'USE ASSETS (Continued) 18. EFH*EEE (#&)

The Group leases offices for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of two years (2020: Nil). Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amounts
of its lease office as at 31 December 2021 and as result of
recognised impairment losses of approximately RMB568,000.
The recoverable amounts of the lease office have been
determined on the basis of their value in use of the cash
generating unit ("CGU") using discounted cash flow method.
The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The
Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted
gross margin and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate
have been assessed as at 31 December 2021 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with the residual period. The Company did not consider
any growth rate in the most recent financial budgets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office
buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold land. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests.

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
the leasehold land were forced sale to an independent third
party in a public auction on 2 April 2020 at the consideration of
which was approximately RMB69,223,000.

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amount
of its leasehold land as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 with
reference to the valuation performed by an independent
valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited. The recoverable amount
is assessed based on fair value less cost of disposal by using
direct comparison approach which involves observable and
unobservable inputs, including market price per square, under
level 3 fair value measurement. During the two years, there were
no change in the valuation techniques used.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment of
leasehold land was made, as its recoverable amount was higher
than its carrying amount as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BP_FE_—Ff _H=1—HIFE

18. FAREE W

91 - 75 S B 7T 7 R A SR A AE 1Y
TERERBAAE - REBAZSYE
BEmERAEA SEEBHEELH-
BUBZEYEES DEEXN R
3k -

WA YRR T17MEE - HEL
WR - E-_ZFTFNA_HNARHAETS
FLARBAH AREG9,223,0007T 1 3 Hl &
F-EZBIEZ-

AEBEC2EHUMGEMRBIHARD
AETHRE BHEAR-_ZT_TFL_-F
T+ A=t -HNHES LTI
&% - ARESHEERAE =R FEFE
THEERLEE (S RABRLATATERE
ABE BREFHAME)  UAFER
BB ARG R ER - PIE R E
Ryt 8 & o

HE_ZE-_—F+_A=+—8BI1Lt&EE"
HREELMARESEaRNER T
T+ AZ+-HZERE FtiE
HHETERRE (S _ZTF E)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE
Investment in an associate

19. R—EBEQTNESR
R—EBEQXTNRE

2021 2020

—E_—F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT

Unlisted investments: JELETIRE

Share of net assets DMEEEFE - -
Goodwilll BES 60,909 60,909
60,909 60,909
Impairment loss BEEE (60,909) (60,909)

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2021 are as
follows:

Issued and
paid up capital
BRIRBERAE

Place of
incorporation

R B L 4 3

REBR -_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8BH

YN L TR

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEEBREL Y

Percentage
of ownership interest
BERESFEEDL
2021 2020
—R--f —TOTH

Baixin (China) Co., Limited The PRC RMB 100,000,000

BE (RE)BRARA i A #100,000,0007C

50% 50% Manufacturing and sales of yarn
and cotton fabric, the PRC
BEREEDERER F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method. The summarised financial
information presented is based on the financial statements of
the associate.

19.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BP_FE_—Ff _H=1—HIFE

R—EEBEQATNER @®
R—EEBERATNEE @

ZHE N FRERERNEAHTBHRERA
R ERBENIRER S AR MEE
WEREF -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARET T
At 31 December: R+—_A=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE 80,544 90,713
Current assets MEEE 54,942 54,959
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (91,870) (91,870)
Current liabilities nBEE (148,688) (147,263)
Net liabilities BB (105,072) (93,461)
Group's share of carrying AEEEGEERER
amount of interest - -
Year ended 31 December: HET-_A=1+—HLFE:
Revenue L& - -
Loss and total comprehensive FANBEREZEWEETE
income for the year (11,611) (11,611)

No loss of the associate was shared (2020: Nil) for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group has not recognised loss
for the year amounting to approximately RMB5,806,000 (2020:
RMB5,806,000) for the associate. The accumulated losses
not recognised were approximately RMB52,536,000 (2020:
RMB46,730,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s associate in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately RMB17,000 (2020: RMB34,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations. However, under the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group’s associate in the PRC is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RB1EFE"
BME LB EARBER(ZE 4
|) AEBARBZBE LN FERFTEER
#) AR ¥5,806,000 (ZE_FF: AR
#5,806,00070) c R ER W R EBY A
AR #52,536,000c (ZE ZFTF: AR
46,730,0007T ) °

NZE-_—F+-_A=+—H A&EFEzR
BEERRIUNARBHENRITEE S
BAEBHAREI7000L (ZE_ZF AR
#£34,0007T) ° B AR B AINEAES (F
BISNEE HIEH) RE - /M RIFEHE <Hh
EEIBIEG) & (EE -SERNESTEK
By - AEBE R P BB 2 QR AR RER
ERRIMNEEE ZRITHEARYE HBH
ftb B HE o

MR ERAAERLQT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

20. INVENTORIES

20. &

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETF

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AR FT

Raw materials R 41 - 1,160
Finished goods BIRY G 2,012 2,439
2,012 3,599

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. EZ R HEWRIE

2021
—EBE_—F

RMB’000
AR® T

2020
—E-FF

RMB'000
ARET T

Trade receivables (note 21(a)) 25 rEWEIE (HFE21)) 2,186 825,593
Less: Allowance for trade receivables BB S EWGRIER RS

(note 21(a)) (MH5E21(@a)) (147) (816,358)

2,039 9,235

Prepayments TR RIE 95,493 180,139

Less: Allowance for prepayments AL TR FRIE A B (87,038) (174,602)

8,455 5,537

Other receivables H b fE Y FRIE 38,975 63,797

Less: Allowance for other receivables SR+ EL A Uk SR B B B (32,213) (32,230)

6,762 31,567

17,256 46,339

1 1 8 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade receivables

21. ES R HMEWRKIE @®
(a) EZEWFIE

The Group's trading terms customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally 90 days (2020: 90 days). Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,

AEEREFPZEZFERIENUE
ERANET-EEH-KB/0R (=
T_THF:90RH) BREEPRAKX

payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks S EERBE-RFEFPME  HMBE

to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. BERELEMNR  AEB BRI E

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. ?ﬂi%f}afg%l AE-ERTEHENS
B4

B 5 ENHE (EMBRE) REE
R BRI ST T -

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EE

—_——— —= =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT

Within 1 month 1MEA A - -
Over 1 month but less than 3 months  11E A A _E{B D A3{E A - -
Over 3 months but less than 6 months  31& A LA _E{B A R6fE A 1,343 4,465
Over 6 months but less than 9 months  61& A LA =18 9@ A 362 2,213
Over 9 months but less than 12 months 91& A A 1B 121& A 334 2,557
2,039 9,235

As of 31 December 2021, trade receivables of R—ZBE-_—F+_A=+—H EH

approximately RMB2,039,000 (2020: RMB9,235,000)
were past due but not impaired. These trade receivables

m&zwammzz 039 0007z (=
T -FF: ARM9,235, ooomazﬁ

related to customers for whom there was no recent HERBE -ZFE 5B FRRET

history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade B MENCHNEFPEHE ZEE

receivables, based on due date, is as follows: SERFIBZIBAZERR DTN
T

2021 2020
—E-—& —Z=—F

= B —= ==

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTIT

Neither past due nor impaired A ER TR AROR B - -
Less than 3 months past due 10 B D A3 1R A 1,343 4,465
Over 3 months but less than B EA3ME A P _E {8 D6 A

6 months past due 362 2,213
Over 6 months but less than @ EAefE A PA 18 Dol A

9 months past due 334 2,557

2,039 9,235

RN BEROGERALA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) Trade receivables (continued)
The Group does not charge interest or hold any collateral
over these balances.

The Group applied simplified approach to provide the ECL
as prescribed by IFRS 9. The impairment methodology
is set out in notes 5(w) and 7(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are set out in note 7(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

21. ES R HMEWRKIE @®
(a) EZEWFIE@
AN B W E R S A R AT BBk
FHEEMIKRR-

A5 B R 1 73R 12 B B 75 3
SRAFRRENIRENEES
1B BETABRN A OB SRR M T
5(w) K7(b)

BE_Z-_—FRk_ZFF+=
A=+—RALtFE BSREMER
HEREFENFBINE I
wERMFET (D) °

22. SRITRB SR

2021 2020
—F=—% ===

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREEF T

RMB AR 396 626

usD ETT 1,569 2,577

i BT 270 368

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations. However, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bf # 3% 3% Fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EFG R EHMENFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT

Trade payables (note 23(a)) B 5 EAFIE (3E23G)) 82,672 86,509
Contract liabilities (note 23(b)) ABRAEE (MH23(0)) 10,913 14,497
Payables for purchases of property, BEWE WE MR HEEMNRIE
plant and equipment 35,608 35,737
Salary payables JE 1< 5 B 23,943 23,176
Interest payables FEASFIE 86,429 72,615
Other payables and accruals HMENAFIERERTEA 51,794 42,990
291,359 275,524
(a) Trade payables (a) EZEMNKE
An aging analysis of trade payables at the end of the RMERRBRBEEZARNE S E
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NEIBERRSTAT

2021 2020
—E-——F —_E-F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT

Within 3 months 3B AR 478 1,566

Over 3 months but less than 31@E A LA 1B AR 121E A
12 months 590 5,931
Over 12 months 1218 A LA E 81,604 79,012
82,672 86,509
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23. ESRHEMESRTRE®
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE

2021 2020
:g:_fﬁ :2—7

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Billings in advance of BHEAE 2 TEUERFK
performance obligation

— sales of fabrics - HEER 10,913 14,497
Contract liabilities are related to receipts from customers AHNBEDNERARZINTERZ
for sales of goods which was not yet delivered to EmHEBEFPKIM s REBEEB -
customers. Revenue is recognised when goods are MmN EEFFHER NG - NEE
delivered to customers. The Group receives deposits RABRNEREXEPIIEMNA
upon acceptance of orders on a case-by-case basis with BIERBEIRS
customers before delivery commences.
Movement in Contract liabilities during the year is as
follows: EHBERAFAZEBHINT

2021 2020
—F¥=-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTIT

At 1 January mn—HA—H 14,497 10,650
Decrease in contract liabilities as BHEERARKTFNER

a result of recognising revenue WEREBVIET AG AR

during the year was included i ik 4

in the contract liabilities

at the beginning of the period (4,145) -
Increase in contract liabilities as AHBEREERATE

a result of billing in advance W BR 3K M0 48 A0

of sales of fabrics 561 3,847
At 31 December W+—A=+—~1 10,913 14,497

1 2 2 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2021 Annual Report



24. BORROWINGS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

24. &R

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT

Current: mE):
Secured bank borrowings (note (a)) BEMBITER (MFE@) 110,344 112,128
Unsecured bank borrowings (note (a)) EERRITER (WiE@) 52,968 57,095
Unsecured bonds (note (b)) EARE S (D)) 638,180 538,520
801,492 707,743
Non-current; IERBD
Unsecured bonds (note (b)) EEFES (b)) 169,452 243,177
970,944 950,920
Notes: B E -
(@)  Bank borrowings (@) SRITER

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB63,312,000 (2020: RMB69,223,000) were
overdue. As a result, the Group is subject to a penalty interest
expense during the overdue period.

The Group's bank borrowings of approximately RMB110,344,000
(2020: RMB112,128,000) were secured by its property, plant and
equipment (note 17) and right-of-use assets (note 18).

The effective interest rates on bank borrowings were ranging
from 5.64% to 11.99% (2020: 5.64% to 11.99%) per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

RZE-Z—F+A=+—H X5£EY
ARM63,312,000 (ZZE =T F: ARK
69,223,0007T ) KR 1T & X E 81 B o A itk -
REBBESNBRARMNEBRAE -

REBRITERLOARE110,344,0007T
(ZZ=_ZTF: AR¥112,128,00070) B E
ME - BEREE(ME17) RIERAEEE
(BsE18) fEHEL IR

s
ERNEBRFHNENT5.64%Z211.99%

HE_ZT-—F+-A=1+—HLEFER
e
(ZE-ZFF:564%%11.99%) °

mEBEROSBERLQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt i sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

24. BORROWINGS (Continued) 24. 'ﬁ%?‘\ﬂ (#&)
Notes: (Continued) MeE: (48)
(@)  Bank borrowings (Continued) (@) SRITERE)
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the bank RITEFEEENIBBERS AT

borrowings is analysed as follows:

2021

—EB-—5F

RMB’000

AR¥TR

Within one year —F R 163,312 169,223
(b)  Unsecured bonds (b)y EIRWES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued a number RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H ARQA%
of HK$- denominated bonds with an aggregate principal of TEZEMHAB T ENES Ki\ﬁ'ﬁﬁi’l)\
approximately RMB636,411,000 (2020: RMB568,046,000). The R#636,411,000L (Z T _FF: AR®
bonds are unsecured, bearing interest rates at a range of 1.5% 568,046,0007T ) ° % & 1& ﬁﬁﬂﬂ}fﬁﬁ RE
- 40% (2020: 1.5% - 40%) per annum, and repayable during MENF15%E40% (ZFE=ZFF:1.5%
the period from January 2022 to December 2029 (2020: January i40% JEFRWEAR T —_F—REZ
2021 to April 2028). The maturity profile of the carrying amount TNFTA(ZE=TF T = —
of the bonds is analysed as follows: ¢ REZZZ)\FNA)BHEEE -Z%

BEFHREENZSMEROTNAT :

2021
—E-—F —FE-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT
Within one year —F AR 638,180 538,520
In the second year BEZFR 62,719 21,222
In the third to fifth years, inclusive fﬁ*i% AF (REEREME) 30,884 135,122
After five years hF% 75,849 86,833
807,632 781,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bf # 3% 3% Fff &
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25.

Minimum lease payments

HE&E

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REAESR REHAESHREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--§ —T-TF CZEZ-§ ZZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETT AR%¥®TR ARETT
Within one year —F LA 294 - 279 -
More than one year, but not —FLRETNBBMF
exceeding two years 147 - 145 -
441 - 424 -
Less: Future finance charges R REE W E 17) - N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations HEETIRE 424 - 424 -
Less: Amount due for settlement J& : JEFM218 A A& E 70A
within 12 months (shown (RREBEFEETIIR)
under current liabilities) (279) -
Amount due for settlement 128 B &8 5E
after 12 months 145 -

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities 5.0%.

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

ERRNHEERE 2 MEF I E B RF

R 5.0% o

PrEREMERMNKBEBABTEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

26. DEFERRED INCOME 26. IEEUY A

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTIT

Government grants relating to leasehold ~ EAFHE L 2 T IEE A

land and land use right B e 12,786 13,098
The movements of deferred income during the year are as BERARFANEBEHTI T
follows:

2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

At 1 January n—H—H 13,098 13,410

Amortised as income BEH AU A (312) (312)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 12,786 13,098

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. EERIEEE

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused REEHR RERE A AERLERK G
tax losses of approximately RMB359,161,000 (2020: BARB AWM IEEELNAKEKE359,161,000
RMB332,165,000) available for offset against future T(ZE2E_Z2F: AR®332,165,000
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due T ) o B P B VA TR A R AR AR - AR HE AR
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included BERIBEEE AERANBEEBEFEHR
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately AFREHMEEL AR336,694,000
RMB336,694,000 (2020: RMB309,698,000) that will expire in T(ZZE =T F: AR%309,698,000
five years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. TL) o Bt BT B 18 Al PR AR AR uE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &

Number of
ordinary
shares
ZiER
RAEAE

‘000

TR

At HK$0.01
per share HK$'000

SREE
0.017%8 T FHET

Authorised: EE:

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R=—ZE-ZFF—H—H"
1 January 2021 and —EZBF+ZA=+—8"
31 December 2021 —B-—-f—-F—-BK

—E-—-H+=ZHA=+—H 100,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: CDERITRHBZE:
At 1 January 2020 W-E-ZF—A—H 186,000 1,860
Placing of new shares under general RIE—REERLE ARG

mandate (note (a)) (Mi5E@)) 37,200 372
Issue of shares upon rights issue (note (b)) IR 1B ZE1TRXD (B 5E (b)) 79,321 793
Placing of new shares under general BE—REERLEFRG

mandate (note (¢)) (BFsE()) 60,504 605
At 31 December 2020 and RZZFBZEF+_HA=1T—HK

1 January 2021 —E-—%—H—H 363,025 3,630
Subscription of new shares under RE-BRREIBHRS

general mandate (note (d)) (Ft5E@)) 72,604 726
Subscription of new shares under RE-BRREIBHRS

general mandate (note (e)) (Ft5Ee)) 87,126 871
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—5+-A=+—H 522,755 5,227
Equivalent to RMB’000: HERARETT:
At 31 December 2020 R_ZB_TF+_H=+—H 3,100
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-—-%+=ZA=+—H 4,431
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

fE-—T——

Ftr_A=1—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

128

On 24 December 2019, the Company and JMC Capital HK
Limited (the “Placing Agent”), entered into a placing agreement
in respect of the placing of 37,200,000 ordinary shares (the
"Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.086 per Placing Share under
general mandate (the “First Placing”). The Placing was completed
on 4 February 2020. The net proceeds from the First Placing (after
deducting the placing commission payable to the Placing Agent
and other expenses incurred in the First Placing), after deduction
of share issue expenses of approximately HK$0.11 million, was
approximately HK$3.09 million. Details of the First Placing were
disclosed in announcements of the Company dated 24 December
2019, 17 January 2020, 23 January 2020 and 4 February 2020.

On 29 April 2020, the Company allotted and issued 79,321,083
new shares on the basis of one rights share for every two shares
held by qualifying shareholders at the subscription price of
HK$0.139 per rights share (“Rights Issue”). The gross proceeds
from the Rights Issue was approximately HK$11 million and costs
incurred for the Rights Issue amounted to approximately HK$0.86
million. Details of the Rights Issue were disclosed in the Rights
Issue Announcements dated 6 March 2020, 23 March 2020, 25
March 2020, 3 April 2020 and 28 April 2020 and the Prospectus
dated 3 April 2020.

On 2 September 2020, the Company and the Placing Agent,
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placing of
60,504,216 ordinary shares (the “Placing Shares”) at a price of
HK$0.143 per Placing Share under general mandate (the “Second
Placing”). The Second Placing was completed on 30 September
2020. The net proceeds from the Second Placing (after deducting
the placing commission payable to the Placing Agent and other
expenses incurred in the Second Placing), after deduction of
share issue expenses of approximately HK$0.15 million, was
approximately HK$8.50 million. Details of the Second Placing
were disclosed in announcements of the Company dated 2
September 2020, 27 September 2020 and 30 September 2020.
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28. B4 @
B3 -
@ R-T-n&E+-A-+mBE AA7
MEERALS (BB ERAD ([RER
BT RERE NEERIEE K8

1% 5 B AC & IR 170.08678 T M (B IS il &
37,200,000f% E @A ([EL &R H 1) (5

—REE]) - @EE$IEEA_§:T¢ZH
MBS -F — REEESFTERIEFEE (10
BENTFREERBZESHS RE— XA
EMEEAZHEMAL)NA3095E ST
(BRI TR0 M BE B TE) °

BRAE - AREZHFBERENARTHE
BIE-—NFF+_AZtBE -ZE=F
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(d)

On 29 March 2021, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with the subscribers pursuant to which the
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
an aggregate of 72,604,167 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.096 per subscription share. The
subscription was completed on 26 April 2021. The net
proceeds from the subscription, after deduction of share issue
expenses of approximately HK$0.2 million, was approximately
HK$6.77 million. Details of the subscription were disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2021 and 26
April 2021.

On 16 July 2021, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with the subscribers pursuant to which the
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, an
aggregate of 87,125,893 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.091 per subscription share. The subscription
was completed on 6 August 2021. The net proceeds from
the subscription, after deduction of share issue expenses
of approximately HK$0.13 million, was approximately
HK$7.80 million. Details of the subscription were disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 18 July 2021, 21 July
2021 and 6 August 2021.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.
No change was made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
is that in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange,
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group has maintained a sufficient public float to comply with
the Listing Rules from the date of the Listing.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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29. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a)

(b)

(c)

130

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents the
reserve arising from the Group reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Group's PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate 10% of
its profit after tax as determined in accordance with the
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory reserve until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
appropriation to the reserve must be made before any
distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous years’
losses, if any, and part of the statutory surplus reserve can
be capitalised as paid-in capital provided that the amount
of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not
be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of the Group's
subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BP_FE_—Ff _H=1—HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. XA T BMRARRHEE T
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the

(a) R2BHBMRREK

Company
2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BRRIEE - 352
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b B W GRIE 7,932 6,686
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEURR B A B FRIA 184 -
Cash and bank balances He RIBT1T4H 9 99
8,125 6,785
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H AT IR 6,723 5,374
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS B B A B R IE 15,872 16,306
Borrowings fBx 638,180 538,520
Lease liabilities HEaE 279 -
661,054 560,200
Net current liabilities REBAETFE (652,929) (553,415)
Total assets less current EEHABRABERE
liabilities (652,929) (553,063)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Borrowings (R 169,452 243,177
Lease liabilities HEAE 145 -
169,597 243,177
Net liabilities BERE (822,526) (796,240)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. XA T BEMRARRFHEED
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ()
(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AR2FEBBEARRRE @
Company (continued)

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Equity Ex
Share capital &% AR 4,431 3,100
Reserves (note 30 (b)) & (PIEE30(b) ) (826,957) (799,340)
Capital deficiency EARE M (822,526) (796,240)
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of RZE-_—_FRA-_FTUBEES
Directors on 24 May 2022. gHOE R T E -
Li Wanyuan Lin Yuxi
ZEBT MEER
EE 2
Director Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. XAR M B MRA KRR EHEE
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (4)
(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company

(b) AR REZB

Other Accumulated
reserves losses Total
Hit 2558 Mgt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARET R ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-TF—-H—H 885,923 (1,643,340) (757,417)
Placing of new shares under general RE-—RRERERRN
mandate 9,666 - 9,666
Issue of share upon rights issue REEREEITIRG 9,079 - 9,079
Share issue expenses BRIDETHRX (790) - (790)
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZENRESE
income for the year - (59,878) (59,878)
At 31 December 2020 and RZFE-FEF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—HBk
—E-—%—-f—H 903,878 (1,703,218) (799,340)
Subscription of new shares under BE-REEREHRHG
general mandate 11,028 - 11,028
Share issue expenses RO BTHEX (341) - (341)
Loss and total comprehensive ERFERZANGAE
income for the year - (38,304) (38,304)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-%
+=ZA=+-H 914,565 (1,741,522) (826,957)
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 31. EFEE
Capital commitment contracted but not provided for at the end RBEPREAT OB ABERLRERE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows: EWEREENT

2021 2020

—8=—% _T_=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBTR

Property, plant and equipment W RS R 387 e

MR ERAAERLQT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

32.

33.

134

BE—F-——Ff+-H=1+—HIFFEZE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the course of business, the Group has been involved
in litigations initiated by various suppliers, customers and
lenders concerned with the contract disputes, quality of goods
and repayment of debts, including claims of insignificant
or unspecified amounts. Some of the litigations have been
concluded by the court and/or settled, while some of the
litigations are still pending judgement. Since the Group has
already accounted for these payables in the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are of the view that the
litigations will not have any significant financial impact to the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In relation to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions
with its related parties during the year:

Name of related party

BB S A

RaEE

Mr. Lin Guogin (ot

FRBA S 4 A ()

Interest expenses

HEFX

32.

33.

Nature of transaction

FREE
AEBREKBECESZEHHER-
BEFREFAREGNM EmERRE
BEEREZHD BREBLTEARX
WARFTHASEZRE -G FAAE BIARR
RN R AR RN R EUR o
HRASEERAEHMBERRCTEZF
ENRIE WEZRA/ZEFFLBETSY
AEEELEERERMBEE -

ARt T X 5
(@) BABHMBRREMILTHRBENZL

SHB IR REHRTE  AKER
FRERBDETIZZWT

2021
—E_—F
RMB’'000
AR% T

2020
—E-FF
RMB'000
ARETIT

- 1,648

Notes:

(i) Mr. Lin Guogin was appointed as an executive director of
the Group with effect from 23 October 2019.

The Group issued a number of HK$- denominated bonds
with aggregate principal of approximately RMB29,899,000
to Mr. Lin Guogin in 2020. The bonds were unsecured,
bearing interest rates at 20% per annum. During the year
2020, Mr. Lin Guogin transferred all the bonds to several
independent third parties.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2021 Annual Report

iy MBERCEERZAAEAEBNTE
FEEE-NFT+AZ-F=-HE
AR o

RZZB_ZTF AEEB RMKER
EEBRITZHUB LT ENES
R R A AR #29,899,0007T © 7%
LEFAEER RFMNE20%5T
B-RZIZBZZFF MEHREEDHE
BEMBESTHUBILIE=F -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bf # 3% 3% Fff &
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BFr —E_—F+_H=+—HIFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3B.BBMARSE ®
(b) The emoluments of directors and other (b) FREERHMFTEEBAE
members of key management during the WE T :

year was as follows:

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Fees we 211 228
Other emoluments H A&
Salaries, allowances and e RAREDH=
benefits in kind 1,598 2,410
Retirement benefit scheme BRIKEFET B R
contributions 30 47
1,628 2,457
1,839 2,685
Further details of emoluments of directors and other FRNEELEMETEETE AE BB
members of key management during the year are set CrE—THBEAREMHYBRE
out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial F3E14 515
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_E - —Ff ZH=+—HIFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. St &R KK
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (a) MMETEEELENEEEHER

financing activities

The table set forth below is the detail changes in the TRAFMAEEREEZHEENE
Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, BEHNEE BEHESNMERSE -
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities METHFELBERARERED
arising from financing activities are those for which cash REARKRREEREKRAEE S
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the HehearkPTorBERETHR:
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash MEMEE:

flows from financing activities.

Bank Lease
Borrowings Bonds liabilities Total

RATAER &% HERE R
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR%®TR AR®Tr AR%TZR

At 1 January 2020 R-E-EF—H—H 233,642 725,584 - 959,226
Cash flow HemE (65,640) (1,663) - (67,303)
Interest expenses FMERX 17,837 109,072 - 126,909
Transfer to interest payables % {EEfH FI & (16,616) - - (16,616)
Exchange difference EHZ% - (51,296) - (51,296)

At 31 December 2020 and R-ZE-EF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2021 kZFZ—-F—H—H

169,223 781,697 - 950,920
Cash flow BeRE (7,907) (4,978) (156) (13,041)
Additions wnE - - 568 568
Interest expenses FEHX 15,810 52,462 12 68,284
Transfer to interest BAERMFE
payables (13,814) - - (13,814)
Exchange difference EXEH - (21,549) - (21,549)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE--f+=-H=1+—-H 163,312 807,632 424 971,368
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34 &§#BEE&HREXRKF

OF CASH FLOWS

(b) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the statement of cash flow for leases

comprise the following:

HERESRLARE
HAHERSRERNSEREMN
TIER

2021 2020
—B=-—F —TTF

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within financing cash flows

RBERDREN

AREFT

156 -

These amounts relate to the following:

Lease rental paid

ENEERES

UATEBEM

2020
—B=-—F —TTF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

156
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35. SUBSIDIARIES 35. B A
Particulars of the Company’'s subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ARQaH
2021 are as follows: BARZEFIBHOT :

Place of incorporation/ Registered/issued Percentage of Principal activities and

establishment and paid up capital ownership interest place of operation

MY/ b BEf/BRARARRE FARESFAEAL TEXBREELE

Potent Union Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands US$200 Direct 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
("BVI")
REZRERAA AERAHES 20057 E#100% RERR B
([RERRES])

Digital Assets Group Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Direct 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong

HFPREEERRAT B 10,000% 7T E%100% BAER B

Coral Pearl International Limited BVI US$100 Direct 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong

EHERARAR ABRIES 100%7 E#100% BERR B

Ultima Prime International Limited BVI US$50,000 Direct 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
ABRAES 50,000%7 E%100% RALR B

Moody Group (Int') Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Indirect 100% Investment holding and sales

of fabrics, Hong Kong
WEEE(ER)RINERAF B 10,000% 7T f%100% REBRREER BB
Shishi City Yingfeiling Supply Chain Management Limited The PRC HK$520,000,000 Indirect 100% Design, manufacturing and
sales of fabrics, the PRC

ARmARAHERERARAT f 520,000,0007T f1%100% Fat EERHEEA T

Fengtal Hubei Textile Co., Limited* The PRC RMB50,000,000 Indirect 100% Manufacturing and sales of fabrics, the PRC

SRt GEARDA i AR 50,000,007 F#100% EERRERS 7E

Hongtai (Hubei) Sales Co., Limited* The PRC RMB2,000,000 Indirect 100% Sales of fabrics, the PRC

A () EHARAA hE AR 2,000,000 F#100% HEAH T

Shishi Hongtai Supply Chain Management Co., Limited* The PRC RMB1,000,000 Indirect 100% Dormant, the PRC

RETEAUREERARARA e ARE1,000,0007 RI100% BE%EY P
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3 5- SU BSIDIARI ES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Registered/issued

establishment and paid up capital

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BB —Ff =1 —HIFFE

35. [t &A= @

Percentage of Principal activities and
ownership interest place of operation

ML/ LS BEM/BRIRARRE FARESFAEIL TEXBREEHE

Guangzhou Seojin Trading Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000
ENEEBZARAA Bk 500,000 ¢
HKT International Holding Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
[ER (FR)EREHERAT Bk 1,000,000%7%
Moody Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
WhEHERAA B 10,0007
Moody International Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
mERESERAR & 10,000/ 7T
Shenzhen Hengjikang Products Co., Ltd.* The PRC RMBS5,000,000
MIBEERARER AT ME AR 5,000,0007
* The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The

official names of these companies are in Chinese. The companies are
registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB395,000 (2020: RMB624,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Indirect 100% Trading of shoes and clothes, the PRC

Ri#100% ERRRRES TE

Indirect 100% Trading of shoes and clothes, the PRC

Ri#100% ERRRRES TE

Indirect 100% Dormant, Hong Kong

f%100% EXKEY BE

Indirect 100% Dormant, Hong Kong

f%100% BXKiEY BE

Indirect 100% Manufacturing and sales of cosmetics
and hygiene products, the PRC

RI#100% EERFE R REERR T8

* NABWZ AW RERBN - ZF QA
MERDEERP X -ZERRREPEDE
FEfMAERAw -

RZB-—F+-A=+—8 FTEERDEH
MBRARNAREFENRITRESERDOR
AR #395,000T (ZZE =T 4 : ARM624,000
7)o AR MAKSNE R E TR B A (SME
ERGD) M BEE EERNEERBRE) A
i RIEHE HMNEERGD) K HEE - EE R
METRERD)  AEERDENMHMEQF R
BERERRIMNERT ZRITHARE HIBKE
& -
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

140

Outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic

Due to the subsequent outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic,
a series of precautionary and control measures have been
and continued to be implemented across the globe. The
Group is paying close attention to the development of,
and the disruption to business and economic activities
caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact
on the financial position, cash flows and operating results
of the Group. Given the dynamic nature of the COVID-19
outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of its impact on the Group’s financial position,
cash flow and operating results at the date on which
these consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue of the COVID-19 has impact on the global
business environment, which brought about additional
uncertainties to the Group’s operation.

Share consolidation

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 4 March 2022,
every ten ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated ordinary share of HK$0.1 each. The share
consolidation was effective on 8 March 2022.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements and circulars dated 13 January 2022,
27 January 2022 and 4 March 2022 respectively.
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(9]

Subscription of new shares under general

mandate

On 13 April 2021, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with the subscribers pursuant to which the
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
an aggregate of 10,455,107 subscription shares (taken
into account the share consolidation) at the subscription
price of HK$0.24 per subscription share. The subscription
was completed on 11 May 2022. The net proceeds from
the subscription, after deduction of share issue expenses
of approximately HK$0.09 million, was approximately
HK$2.42 million. Details of the subscription were disclosed
in announcements of the Company dated 13 April 2022
and 11 May 2022.

37. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements are approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 May 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BP_FE_—Ff _H=1—HIFE

36. EMHABREE W

37.

(9]

RIB — R ERIEH R

RZEBEZ—FWEA+=B A AH
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

OPERATING RESULTS Rl

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=t-ALEE

2020 2019

— F — F/
E-=
—_— X —

Revenue (RMB'000) Yz (AREF) 155,541 206,666 517,665 250,660 271,858
Gross profit/(loss) (RMB'000) 5,/ (8) (AREFR) 3,627 (12,315) 11,019 (61) (16,604)
Gross profit/(loss) margin EF,/ (B)% 23% (6.0%) 2.1% (0.02%) (6.1%)

Loss and total comprehensive income KAREENEEBER
attributable to owners of the Company 2 HEMEAZE

(RMB'000) (ARETT) (100,528) (219,049) (287,608) (369,281) (732,765)
Net loss margin RERX (64.6%) (106.0%) (55.6%) (147 3%) (269.5%)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET EHEEEER
The following table sets forth our assets/liabilities position as at TFTERBHIHEMR=—_ZE—+F - —_FT—\F =
31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021: T-NhEF ZE-FTFR_FT=—F+=A

=t+t—HWEE AEHRR:

As at 31 December
R+=A=1+-H
2021 2019 2018 2017

—¥--F TIEF  ZTNF ZF0\F ZE iR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR

Current assets MEBEE 21,503 53,509 120,765 146,798 287,140
Current liabilities MEEE 1,093,130 983,267 816,853 722,576 601,130
Net current liabilities MEAETE (1,071,627) (929,758) (696,088) (575,778) (313,990)
Net liabilities BEFE (1,047,797) (959,287) (759,788) (472,180) (129,032)
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FINANCIAL INDICATORS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY B B =

MBIER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-ALEE

Return on equity (%) (Note 1) BARBRE (%) (1) N/A &R
Return on assets (%) (Note 2) BERBRE (%) (fF2) (44.1)
Interest coverage ratio (Note 3) FEBEX (MH3) (1.5)

2020 2019 2018
NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
(78.2) (62.5) (68.0) (94.2)
(17) (19 (36) (10.7)

As at 31 December

mENELE (%) (FiFT4) 20
RENELE (%) (PEES) 18
Debt to equity ratio (%) (Note 6) BB AL E (%) (Fi3E6) N/A REH
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 7) ERBELE(%) (K7 N/A REH

Current ratio (%) (Note 4)
Quick ratio (%) (Note 5)

Notes:

(1) Return on equity for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019,
2020 and 2021 was calculated based on our total comprehensive
income for the respective year divided by the total equity of the
respective year and multiplied by 100%.

(2)  Return on assets for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018,
2019, 2020 and 2021 was calculated based on our loss and total
comprehensive income for the respective year divided by our total assets
of the respective year and multiplied by 100%.

(3) Interest coverage ratio for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018,
2019, 2020 and 2021 was calculated based on our loss for the year for
the respective year divided by our finance costs for the respective year.

(4)  Current ratio as at 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021
were calculated based on our current assets of the respective date
divided by our current liabilities of the respective date and multiplied by
100%.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY 81 B E

144

Quick ratio as at 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021
were calculated based on our current assets minus inventories as at the
respective date divided by our current liabilities as at the respective date
and multiplied by 100%.

Debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and
2021 were calculated based on our total debts (being sum of our total
borrowings and amounts due to related parties and third parties) as at
the respective date divided by total equity as at the respective year and
multiplied by 100%.

Gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021
were calculated based on our net debts (being total debts net of cash
and cash equivalents) as at the respective date divided by total equity as
at the respective year and multiplied by 100%.
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